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Financial and operational highlights B Kk & ERHE

Financial performance B175&IR

In HK$mn In HK$mn
BYEET BEBRET
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
HE-Z—NF BE_Z—=F Change
ANA=tTHLEFE ANA=THIEFE EE
Revenue Uz 2,548 2,517 ™M%
Gross profit 7 1,301 1,199 8%
Profit from operating activities 4 i& %75 7 155 46 1236%
Profit for the year attributable to owners A A &G4 P 7l 127 22 1472%
Basic EPS (in HK cents) SRREARZF (L) 7.83 1.37 1471%
Interim dividend per share (in HK cents) S HiA%E. (71L) 2.30 0.63 265%
Special interim dividend per share (in HK cents)
GRAFRIFREARS (GBI - 1.05 4 100%
Final dividend per share (in HK cents) ERARHARE GEil) 3.17 0.60 1428%
Special final dividend per share (in HK cents)
FREBFIARERE (BIL) 1.56 0.60 160%
Payout ratio (%) TESLLE (%) 90% 210%  V120% pts EEHE
Gross margin (%) EFIE (%) 51% 48% 3% pts EHE D2
Operating margin (%) &3&&FI% (%) 6% 2% 4% pts EHE D2
Net margin (%) SF@EFE (%) 5% 1% 4% pts HE D2
EBITDA R&tA8 - BitE - & REHATAF 213 113 187%
EBITDA margin (%) R&tFI8 - B8 - 78 LM A2 %= (%) 8% 5% 3% pts EEHE
Capital expenditure &R 59 60 V2%
Key financial indicators F 28 #5512
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
—E-mF —E-=%F Change
~A=+A A~NA=+A B
Inventory turnover* (days) 175 E#HI* (k) 84 85 V1 day X
Inventory level (in HK$mn) F&EXKF (BB EET) 287 305 V6%
Return on equity (%) R&EREZEIFRE (%) 17% 3% 114% pts EEHE
Current ratio (times) 7#EIELE (%) 2.71 2.45 1%
Net cash® (in HK$mn) B&58T (BB EET) 454 339 34%
Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) #2& EHMRFESLLE (%) 44% 49% V5% pts EHESE

* Inventory held at year end divided by annualised cost of sales times 365 days 445 8 2 17 S E: AF E (L85 & AR AATR365K

T Time deposits, cash and bank balances less bank borrowings 5 877 5t i3 & K $R1T R SEIRTT B3R

Revenue by geographical market %@ i35 48~ U zs

For the year ended 30 June 2014 HZE—Z—NFXA=+HILFE

9%

(10%)

Singapore
N

Hong Kong

b

69%

(65%)

Global distribution

network &I $H44%

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
—E-mEF T4 Change
AA=tH ~A=+H (LL
Hong Kong &%
Directly managed stores a1 41 -
HETEER
Mainland China #E X
Directly managed stores 124 144 ¥ 20
BEREEEH
Franchised stores 96 156 ¥ 60
FRRTAE 54
Sub-total 220 300 ¥ 80
hat
Taiwan &%
Directly managed stores 72 85 V13
HETEER
Singapore N
Directly managed stores 30 30 -
HETEER
Other countries HtEIxR
Export franchised stores 599 561 138
e mES
Total &#
Directly managed stores 267 300 V33
HEEBER
Franchised stores 695 717 ¥ 22
FRRTALE 54
962 1,017 ¥ 55
14 % | Mainland China
(15%) R ‘
8%

(10%)

Taiwan

() Figures for the year ended 30 June 2013 are shown in brackets HZ — T — =X A=+ AL FE 2 BFUEHRERR
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Our vision is to be the
MOost preferred

EVERYDAY WEAR

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; stock
code on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“stock
code”): 592) and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Bossini”) is
a renowned apparel brand owner, retailer and franchiser in
the region.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Bossini launched its first
retail store in 1987. Over the past two decades, it rapidly
established an extensive international operating platform
and distribution network that extended to a total of 962 stores
worldwide. Among these, the Group operated 267 directly
managed stores in Hong Kong, mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore. The Group also further strengthened its brand
presence in mainland China through the establishment of 96
franchised stores. As for other overseas markets, the Group
cooperated with its business partners to establish a total of
599 export franchised stores in about 32 countries, spanning
from Southeast Asia, the Middle East, Europe to as far as
Central America.

Well-known for its comfortable, easy to mix-and-match,
colourful and energetic style, Bossini offers a wide range of
good value for money casual wear apparel products including
men’s, ladies’, youth and kids’ wear, which are designed to fit
customer needs.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FRBBR A

Dear Shareholders,

The Group’s performance in fiscal year 2013/14 was encouraging. Profit for the year attributable to owners
attained nearly six-fold against last year. The Hong Kong segment, long the heart of our business, notched
noteworthy record highs. The retail business in Hong Kong delivered record-high sales and achieved double-
digit growth in same-store sales, which marked the fifth consecutive year of positive same-store sales increment.
The export franchising business delivered record-high sales as well, with total presence of 32 countries and
regions around the world. The performances of both of our mainland China and Taiwan segments substantially
improved. Consistent with previous year’s efforts, the Group drew to a positive conclusion from streamlining of
operations in core markets during fiscal year 2013/14 by uplifting shop productivity and operational efficiency and
consolidating underperforming stores.

Encouraging Financial Results

The Group's total revenue in fiscal year 2013/14 increased to HK$2,548 million, gross profit rose to HK$1,301
million, as did the gross margin, by 3% points to 51%. The Group's operating profit hit HK$155 million with an
operating margin of 6%. Profit for the year attributable to owners totalled HK$127 million while basic earnings
per share reached HK7.83 cents. The Group’s financial position continued to strengthen, ended the year with net
cash balance of HK$454 million, a pronounced increase compared to last year. Inventory level remained healthy
overall.

Delivering value to shareholders has been and remains our main focus while our dividend policy aims at reflecting
the Group's operating results and financial position. In fiscal year 2013/14, the Board recommended payment of
a final dividend of HK3.17 cents per share and a special final dividend of HK1.56 cents per share.

HEMRR :

AEE—T—= /N RFEEBRASARE - BEABEFA
BANBREFHGSOOLENER BEHEREAEEEBNZOME -
AEERILZHEELH S KEGRHAR BETEXBKATHER
oo REHEENGEMEER YEERFHFEER - HOE
TAREEXBHETHERN S EHEMDH2ERRMMLE - HE
RERGEBMBERRBENE - AREZFRANIRERR AEEE
TE-Z/-NUMBEE RROTSEHIEE ReEEBEENK
BERERDBESREARMBENER  HMBSEERKSR

HEEXREEE

EZZ—= /N BFE  SEGUSEM A ZEE25488T
EFMEAZEE13.01EIL - MEMEIGIN3EE D ES1% A5
EEERF AAE155ET  MEBEFNEAE6Y% - HE ARIGF NG
FAEABE127ETT BRERRBF A7.838W - REBPBRAIFE
B RNFENFREERREFEZIEMESBA54ET - BE
FERERBTEREKE -

AEE-—ABARERFNEEH  RANKEEEKE ERBRAKEN
REXREMBMRR - E_F—= /NP RFE EERBZFRE
REB BB 317780 &5 R RHI S 8 B0 5681l -
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

4 semmugns

Improved Operating Efficiency

For the year under review, the Group’s same-store sales recorded 9% growth overall. Hong Kong and mainland
China had demonstrated the strongest growth in same-store sales as they both surged 12% growth compared
with last year. The export market for the franchising business was once again dynamic throughout the year,
delivered record-high sales, and added 38 stores mainly in Middle East and India. Results of our mainland China
and Taiwan segments improved significantly, which reflected the enhanced efficiency through streamlining of
operations in those markets.

Strengthening Brand Popularity

We extended our commitment to working with internationally-renowned licensing partners to create co-branded
and licensed merchandise. These products continued their vital role as we bolstered public awareness of “bossini”
by offering customers a point of differentiation while enhancing our distinctive “be happy” brand value. Building
on the success in previous years, the Group once again collaborated with three recognisable and popular brands
to develop engaging promotions.

During the year under review, the Group worked with Sesame Street to release a unique bossini x Sesame
Street crossover collection featuring the show'’s famous characters alongside an array of appealing accessories
and premiums. We also collaborated with Ocean Park Halloween Bash to present a variety of holiday-themed
costumes. Moreover, to celebrate Disney’s 90th anniversary, we launched the Let’s Party with Mickey Mouse
collection which debuted in 2014 and delivered overwhelming excitement.

EERERNE

CEFERN  AEEREHEFERBBRFI%ER - FERPEARETS
MRIEHERERRY  HREFLET12% - HOEFREEBFR
BEXRERY AITHERLENS RANZEEPRRANEER3S
RESH mRPEAENGEHRAERBHEE RBIAEERE ¥
BEUNBELRE -

RAmBARE

AEBEBRRRNEREAE EHERBRERREER - L&
BIHOERE @ - BEATHRT [bossini | EYAMETE - TRADRICE A [ 52
RE | mEEE - BREZFROKDER  AEEBEE=-FKMERR
B AR EE  REBARS NNHERLY -

EEFA - AEBEEZMAEE - #EBR®bossini x Sesame Street
BRIEAIEER  BREFENZMEACETRNRRE L W6 —
RYBARS| DR LER - AREB TS EGF AR HBBES
ERE HE— RIS HEERORE - 1N AEGBLTREATE
FoRME_ZS—NFEEHE Let's Party with Mickey Mouse & 51| &
W EETmSAZIEE -
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
FRBBR A

Brighter Prospects Ahead

In the near future, we expect moderate growth as an aftermath of the mainland China government’s reform
measures and the steadily gathering global recovery headed by advanced economies. For the apparel markets,
we anticipate some retailers would continue with steep price discounting to reduce their excessive inventories.
Nevertheless, the Group’s inventory remained at a healthy level and we believe the Group will face less price
pressure in the coming year compared to our competitors.

Strategically, we intend to allocate additional resources to facilitate expansion of our export franchising business.
We will also focus efforts on developing our kid's line, a time-tested source of success and competitive advantage
that we are enjoying particularly in Hong Kong. We also plan in the year ahead to continue rolling out our latest
generation of store concept. The new store concept has been successful as it showcases our broad variety of
products and renders higher feasibility in displaying our merchandise in more visually enticing arrangements that
accentuate the attributes and mix-and-match nature of our products.

Looking ahead, we would continue to offer appealing, competitive and quality everyday wear that complement
our “be happy” philosophy. In addition, we would continue to attain higher productivity and operational
efficiencies, of which the contribution was tremendous for the year under review. Furthermore, the growth
momentum for our Hong Kong retail and export franchising businesses are anticipated to sustain. | am confident
that the Group would continue to deliver encouraging results and further enhance shareholders’ value in the
future.

Acknowledgments

I am grateful for the timeless effort and commitment of our management and staff in the past year, and proud
of the contribution each and every one of them has made to our organisation and our unique “be happy” brand
value and culture, while we will continue to develop and nurture high caliber people as part of our long term
human capital strategy. | also wish to express my deep appreciation to our customers, our business partners and
our shareholders for their trust and confidence in Bossini.

TSIN Man Kuen Bess
Chairman

Hong Kong
17 September 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

b| zmBtaR o

Overview

During the financial year 2013/14, global economic activities strengthened with well-developed economies being
the catalyst, although their recoveries remained uneven. Stronger-than-expected growth in the latter part of 2013
was driven to a certain extent as exports to advanced economies accelerated.

In developing countries, economic development lagged behind that of advanced economies, but modest growth
continued during the year under review. Growth in domestic demand in certain Asian countries was stable, and
retail activities across these markets were brisk, fuelled in part by the mainland China government to curtail rapid
credit growth and take concrete reform steps to put the economy on a more balanced and sustainable growth
trajectory.

The Hong Kong retail sector, which was the most significant market for the Group, however slumped in the
first half of 2014, compared to the same period last year. These tepid Hong Kong figures were believed to
be attributed by a decline in the number of high-spending tourists that visited from mainland China as well
as political uncertainty. Among the core regions of the Group’s business, the apparel markets were highly
competitive overall, resulting from the increasingly intense competition with both international and local brands
streaming into the markets over the years.

Nevertheless, the Group achieved encouraging results overall during the financial year 2013/14. Although the
revenue of the Group minor increased 1%, profit for the year attributable to owners attained nearly six-fold
against last year. The network consolidation process has for the most part ended; the shop productivity has gained
momentum in the aftermath and realised 9% same-store sales growth overall on Group level.

The Hong Kong retail business, which included the shops located in Macau, delivered record-high sales with
12% same-store sales growth, representing positive same-store sales growth for the fifth consecutive year.
Likewise, the Hong Kong export franchising business also delivered record-high sales. With these two business
units, the Hong Kong segment has regained its growth momentum as evidenced in its year-on-year bottom-
line improvement in the second half of financial year 2013/14. Results for both our mainland China and Taiwan
segments had improved substantially, which contributed to the Group’s remarkable performance compared with
the previous year. The Group boosted its strong financial position with a higher net cash balance and slightly lower
inventory turnover days year-on-year.

e

BEREERNEHFRET— BR-Z—=/-NUBFERE L
DRATREQEEY AT =FT+F hRXHOIEERAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

=EENBEA |/

Financial Performance

The Group's revenue slightly increased 1% to HK$2,548 million (2013: HK$2,517 million) for the year under
review. Gross profit rose 8% to HK$1,301 million (2013: HK$1,199 million), as did the gross margin, by 3%
points, to 51% (2013: 48%). The Group's operating profit was HK$155 million (2013: HK$46 million), which
represented 6% (2013: 2%) operating margin. EBITDA was HK$213 million (2013: HK$113 million); profit for
the year attributable to owners totalled HK$127 million (2013: HK$22 million); while basic earnings per share hit
HK7.83 cents (2013: HK1.37 cents).

The Group's financial position continued to strengthen, ended the year with cash and bank balances of HK$454
million (2013: HK$339 million), a pronounced increase from last year. Net cash balance was also higher by the
same amount and margin compared to the previous year, at HK$454 million (2013: HK$339 million).

Operating Efficiencies

Same-store sales for the Group registered reassuring growth during the year, surging 9% compared to last year’s
flat result. Both Hong Kong retail and export franchising operations delivered record-high sales. The same-store
sales growth for Hong Kong was 12% (2013: 3% growth), representing positive growth for the fifth consecutive
year. Mainland China recorded substantial reduction in operating loss as a result of improved shop productivity,
with same-store sales achieving double-digit growth of 12% (2013: 4% decline), plus higher sales per sq. ft. year-
on-year. In addition, the closure of underperforming stores and introduction of stringent cost-control measures
contributed to these favourable results.

As of 30 June 2014, the total retail floor area of the Group’s directly managed stores totalled 455,100 sq. ft.
(2013: 496,500 sq. ft.), a reduction that stemmed from the closure of underperforming stores. By streamlining
the operations, sales per sq. ft. increased to HK$4,100 (2013: HK$3,300).

MBRR

OEFR  NEBRFEM EF1%EBE2548FBT(ZTE—=F 1 &
K25 17187T) « EFM EFA8%EEK13.01BL (Z T —=4 : 5111.99
Br) EMEREIETDEEES1% (2T —=4F : 48%) - NEEH
BEHNABEISSER(ZE—=F  B46TET) ¥EHME
AlAE6% (ZT— =4 :2%) o Rt FI B - FIE - T8 REHITEF A
BEHO 3BT (ZE—=F B38BT  EEARGERNENA
BEI2IEBIL(CE—=F  BE22TE L) BREKREFZET 838
W(=ZZF—=4 : 1.3781) -

EEMEASAMBITL (ZE—=F : BH3.39ET) - WL BHER ABEL54
B (CE— =4 : BH339ET) BN LFEEKE-

AEBFAREHEFAILI%  MEFRUFF - BEEHEBRTERHLR
HABFREXBNHEERDE TELH S REHERIEZR12% (=
T-=F ¥R3%)  BELFMEEEE - PEKRKEMSEEBR
RIEWE  ERREMEENNNRS  FEHEREF12%NELHR
BR(ZE—=F: TR4%) URBFTREEHERZFONEER -
BESN - SRR AR ANIR ISR JE 4 A R BAR BB AR S TRAA B E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AIEJEJ—THHE& $ﬁ'

The Group's operating expenses for the year ended 30 June 2014 reduced to 46% on its revenue from 47% of HE—_ZT—NFA=+H JtEJ* BB EAREEARERESE

last year. The following table provides a breakdown of the operating costs: B47% T2 E46% « REELBEBR AN FARNTA T -
Operating Costs Analysis B DT
For the year ended 30 June
BEAA=tHILEE
2014 2013
—E-HmF —T—=
HK$ million % of revenue HK$ million % of revenue Change(%)
BEEET HRBFED BEEETT HREE S HH#(%)
Revenue Yz 2,548 100% 2,517 100% +1%
Selling and distribution expenses $5%& & 7 # f X% 843 33% 850 34% -1%
Administrative expenses 77 [ 5% 267 1% 273 1% 2%
Other operating expenses £ fib & 18 i &7 60 2% 50 2% +20%
Total operating expenses & & E i & 1,170 46 % 1,173 47% 0%
Business Review E - anl ]
Distribution Network palk kSR

During the year under review, the Group had its footprint in 36 countries and regions around the world. The total
store count declined by 55 to 962 (2013: 1,017) following the consolidation and reduction of underperforming @A
shops in mainland China and Taiwan, a process that was for the most part completed. Of the existing stores, 267

(2013: 300) were directly managed and 695 (2013: 717) were franchised as of 30 June 2014.

The Hong Kong market remained the Group’s core market and was the major contributor to the Group’s total
revenue. The store count in Hong Kong, including Macau, held at 41 (2013: 41), while the export market for the
franchising business was once again robust throughout the year as 38 stores were added in selected markets to

bring the total to 599 (2013: 561).

CIEAFAN > AEBERKEMEIE6EBRMME o 7P B AREN &
WA RIBAMIBEIEFO TIE - DR T - EHEE R
T—=4F:1,017) - RZZTE—WOFA=+H -
T— =1 :300f) - FAFECEEH B

55 E 962 (—
AEEEEEEERA267ME (=
695 (=T — =% : 717[&) -

EEMBEEATEENZLOTEREBRE KRR AEBESRS (2
R LEMEHRERTCME (ST —=F : 41H) - HAFTEE
EBFNEBERTAY  ERETMHER TISHEOFHFLEEHE
599 (ZZ— =4 : 561f)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
=EESBR |9

The mainland China apparel market witnessed the bulk of the Group’s store closures, mostly in northern and REEEFEL  NEEDARCEREFEAEMSEESEMN TIE &
central China. The closure of underperforming shops was largely completed by the end of the year under review. RTAKEFEANDEL I G B[RRI AR MIBEHES - B AT
In total, the Group had 220 (2013: 300) stores in mainland China. These moves were conducted in tandem B ARPEREAEA220 (ZE—=4 : 300) ° L9 @EHR
with shop closures in Taiwan, another challenging apparel market that faced relatively low demand and tepid HEHIGRIETMIE - HESRKHEHES  HEEEOLEE  KA&£H
consumer confidence. In Taiwan, the total number of stores shrunk to 72 (2013: 85) following the consolidation E—SRAEQERBANEENES  EHEBEERENME(ZE—=

of underperforming shops there. The number of directly managed stores in Singapore remained at 30 (2013: 30). F o 85f) c MIIMEMNEZEREMHHSE E#FAE30M (ZFT—=F:30
f) e
The following is a breakdown of stores by geographical location and store type: I A EsEERE S 2 D HIn T ¢
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
—Z-mEXA=1+H —E-=FXA=1H

Directly managed stores Franchised stores Directly managed stores Franchised stores
EEEEEH BRE BEEEREH FRET I 5
Hong Kong &% 41 = 41 -
Mainland China # B A [ 124 96 144 156
Taiwan & & 72 - 85 -
Singapore 7114 30 - 30 -
Other countries and regions E th B R % i [@ - 599 - 561
Total #& 5t 267 695 300 717
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Marketing and Branding

The Group continued to organise a number of promotional initiatives with business partners by drawing upon the
core brand value of “be happy”. The Group occupies a recognisable position in the market by producing vibrant,
attractive and quality everyday wear.

The Group extended its commitment to working with internationally-renowned licensing partners to create co-
branded and licensed merchandise. The products continued their key role in the Group’s efforts to bolster public
awareness of the brand by offering customers a point of differentiation while enhancing the distinctive “be
happy” brand value. Building on the success of previous years, the Group once again collaborated with three
recognisable and popular companies to develop engaging promotions.

Co-branded and Licensed Products

During the year under review, the Group again embarked on mutually beneficial product partnerships. The bossini
X Sesame Street crossover series, continued to prove popular as it featured the show’s famous characters on
all kinds of clothing and accessories, the latter including blanket cushions, backpacks, packable tote bags and
more. Bossini’s flagship store in Mongkok was transformed into a bossini x Sesame Street pop-up store offering
customers the chance to meet the warm and friendly characters.

Ocean Park’s annual Halloween is legendary in Hong Kong. The Group collaborated with Ocean Park Halloween
Bash and presented a variety of holiday-themed costumes, and sold the products both at “bossini” stores across
Hong Kong and in Ocean Park'’s bustling souvenir shop.

In addition, to celebrate Disney’s 90th Anniversary we launched our Let’s Party with Mickey Mouse collection
which debuted in 2014 and delivered highly welcome excitement, pairing Disney’s most beloved characters with
our “be happy” brand value. Encompassing printed tee shirts, sleepwear, denim jackets and umbrellas, the well-
admired collection underscored the value of securing win-win partnerships.

The co-branding and licensing programmes remained popular among the Group’s target customers while
enhancing our brand equity and driving sales. Such initiatives will continue as the Group's core strategy.
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Operational Performance by Market

The Hong Kong segment encompasses directly managed retail business and the export franchising business. As
in previous years, the segment provided the Group’s major source of revenue, accounting for 69% (2013: 65%)
of the Group’s consolidated revenue for the year ended 30 June 2014. Mainland China comprised 14% (2013:
15%) of the Group’s consolidated revenue; Taiwan and Singapore accounted for 8% and 9% (2013: 10% and
10%) of the Group's consolidated revenue, respectively.

The Hong Kong segment delivered record-high sales with same-store sales achieving double-digit growth, while
same-store sales in mainland China grew by 12% (2013: 4% decline), matched by a year-on-year increase in sales
per sqg. ft.. Business in Taiwan narrowed operating loss following the closure of underperforming stores there, yet
enjoyed mounting productivity as made evident by higher sales per sq. ft..

Hong Kong

Despite the intense competition in the local apparel market, we still managed to achieve noteworthy record
highs. The Group introduced the right product mix and embraced a more effective visual merchandising approach
with help from the latest generation of shop renovations, which utilise highly flexible furniture and fixtures and
enhanced the overall product presentation. These factors contributed to better apparel sales figures year-on-year
and accelerated sales growth in the year under review.
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The retail business delivered record-high sales with same-store sales achieved double-digit growth of 12% (2013:
3% growth), marking five consecutive years of positive growth. The export franchising business also delivered
record-high sales. Total revenue for the year under review from Hong Kong segment broke records with revenue
of HK$1,757 million (2013: HK$1,626 million), a promising rise of 8%. The total retail floor area in Hong Kong
amounted to 141,700 sqg. ft. (2013: 141,000 sq. ft.) while the number of directly managed stores held at 41
(2013: 41). Sales per sq. ft. expanded by 11% to HK$8,800 (2013: HK$7,900). Although full year operating profit
retreated to HK$202 million (2013: HK$212 million), which represented a 5% dip over the previous year with an
operating margin of 11% (2013: 13%), the Hong Kong segment has regained growth momentum year-on-year
during the second half of the financial year.

During the year under review, the Group seized the opportunity to expand its export franchising business, adding
38 stores to reach a total of 599 (2013: 561) across 32 countries and regions.

Mainland China

On the wheels of the mainland China government’s efforts to stabilise growth through fiscal stimulus in the
middle of 2013, the country’s GDP remained stable, while production and retail sales all picked up in the first three
quarters in 2013. However, mainland China still experienced relatively slow growth arising from overdependence
on fixed-asset investment, particularly in construction, as well as sluggish consumer spending. Accompanied by
intensely fierce competition in the apparel retail sector and the blossoming of e-commerce, which increasingly
usurps offline channels, the situation in mainland China remained challenging.

These issues notwithstanding, the same-store sales actually increased. The Group progressively closed
underperforming stores and implemented stringent cost-control measures, yielding a total revenue of HK$348
million (2013: HK$389 million) and an operating loss of HK$14 million, which was markedly reduced from
HK$116 million loss in the previous year, resulting in an operating margin of negative 4% (2013: negative 30%).
Total retail floor area was 191,500 sq. ft. (2013: 215,200 sq. ft.). The total number of stores declined to 220
(2013: 300), of which 124 (2013: 144) were directly managed stores and 96 (2013: 156) were franchised. Same-
store sales recorded double-digit growth of 12% (2013: 4% decline). Sales per sq. ft. accordingly increased 8%
to HK$1,300 (2013: HK$1,200).
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Taiwan

Taiwan continued over the past year to absorb the impact of a sharp deceleration in exports. A stagnant labour
market is inhibiting the lukewarm domestic climate and lacklustre state of private consumption. Nevertheless,
the Taiwan segment recovered same-store sales growth during the second half of the year. For the year under
review, the Taiwan segment substantially improved due to the closure of underperforming stores and stringent
cost controls. These moves led to higher sales per sq. ft. year-on-year and a significant reduction in operating loss.

Total revenue for the Taiwan segment during the year under review was HK$212 million (2013: HK$246 million).
Taiwan shed 13 stores in its directly managed store count to stand at 72 (2013: 85), with a reduction in total retail
floor area to 86,300 sq. ft. (2013: 105,000 sq. ft.) driven by the closure of underperforming stores. Sales per sg.
ft. grew 5% to HK$2,100 (2013: HK$2,000) while same-store sales growth remained flat (2013: 17% decline).
The operating loss was cut to HK$14 million (2013: HK$50 million loss). The operating margin was negative 7%
(2013: negative 20%).

Singapore

Total revenue for the Singapore segment during the year under review was HK$231 million (2013: HK$256
million) while the number of directly managed stores remained at 30 (2013: 30). Total retail floor area rose 1%
to 35,600 sq. ft. (2013: 35,300 sq. ft.). Same-store sales dipped compared to the previous year with a 5% decline
(2013: 5% growth). Sales per sq. ft. fell 11% to HK$6,600 (2013: HK$7,400). The operating loss was HK$19
million (2013: HK$0.1 million loss) with a decrease in the operating margin to negative 8% (2013: 0%).
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's cash and bank balances as of 30 June 2014 stood at HK$454 million (2013: HK$339 million), and the
net cash balance was HK$454 million (2013: HK$339 million). The current ratio for the Group was 2.71 (2013:
2.45) times, and the ratio of total liabilities to equity was 44% (2013: 49%). No bank borrowing was recorded as
of 30 June 2014 (2013: nil). The Group’s gearing ratio as determined by bank borrowings divided by total equity
was nil (2013: nil).

The Group has investments and operations in countries that use currencies other than the United States dollar
and the Hong Kong dollar. As such, the Group is exposed to a limited extent to foreign currency risk, which it
mitigates by entering into forward currency contracts to reduce exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in material
transactions denominated in currencies other than United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar.

As of 30 June 2014, the Group had inventory turnover days* of 84 days (2013: 85 days). The Group’s return on
equity ratio for the year under review was 17% (2013: 3%).

* Inventory held at year end divided by annualised cost of sales times 365 days

Assessment of Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group considered that certain property, plant and equipment were
subject to impairment loss because the cash generating units of those property, plant and equipment in Singapore
were non-performing and suffered from substantial losses for the year. As a result, an impairment loss of HK$5
million was recorded.
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Contingent Liabilities

Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and property rental deposits X /K E M AW ELE 2 BITER

HREE
2014 2013
—F-HmF —T=F
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BET T BT T
7,146 7,729

The Company has given guarantees in favour of banks to the extent of HK$552 million (2013: HK$765 million)
with respect to banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. These facilities were utilised to the extent of
HK$54 million (2013: HK$58 million) as of 30 June 2014.

Human Capital

The Group had a total of 2,400 (2013: 2,700) full-time equivalent employees in Hong Kong, Macau, mainland
China, Taiwan and Singapore as of 30 June 2014. The Group upholds its fervent commitment to developing and
training employees. The Group continued to offer regular training programmes, such as the “7 Habits®” and "7
Practices” courses that together constitute the “bossini way"”. Its remuneration system remained performance-
based such that it provides share options, discretionary bonuses and comprehensive benefits such as insurance
and retirement schemes.

Outlook

The Group is prudently optimistic about upcoming market prospects. We expect growth to pick up moderately
in line with the steadily gathering global recovery, headed by advanced economies. In Asia, it is expected to
see resilient labour markets and still-buoyant credit growth continue to support domestic demand. The Group
subscribes to the position that, notably in mainland China, reforms liberalising the financial system will boost
productivity growth. However, to cement confidence, there must be a gradual and smooth transition from rapid
investment-intensive measures to an economy driven by consumption and services. It is believed that sustainable
growth can transpire under such circumstances.
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The retail environment is expected to remain challenging in the coming year, especially in Hong Kong as evidenced
by the recent decrease in retail sales after a prolonged growth period and the potential administrative measures
to restrict the number of visitors from mainland China. Steep price discounting to clear excessive inventory by
some retailers is expected to linger. Nevertheless, the Group’s inventory remained at a healthy level, and hence
we would face less price pressure in the near future compared to our competitors.

Looking ahead, the Group intends to allocate additional resources to facilitate expansion of its export franchising
business. In addition, we will focus efforts on developing our kid’s line, a time-tested source of success and
competitive advantage that we are enjoying particularly in Hong Kong. The Group also plans to continue rolling
out our latest generation of store concept in the year ahead. In view of our diverse range of product offerings,
the new store concept has apparently improved shop productivity, namely through better visual merchandising
arrangements and lively mix-and-match presentations that accentuate the attributes of our collection, thanks
to the highly flexible designs involving the latest furniture, fixtures and renovations. With respect to sales
and marketing initiatives, we will continue to pursue fruitful partnerships with well-known brands to unveil
co-branded and licensed clothing and merchandise to extend and enhance our brand equity.

In all these efforts, we draw strength from the talent and drive of our people, who continue to form the Group’s
backbone. We will stay committed to investing in our people, cultivating our “be happy” core brand value,
and enhancing our professionalism, particularly in achieving our strategic goals. Amid global uncertainties, we
would continue with our strategies and formulas which are proven successful and rewarding over the past years.
Through tenacious execution of our initiatives, we are determined to build “bossini” as one of the most valued
apparel brands for appealing, competitive and quality everyday wear.
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Bossini is a learning organisation that treasures knowledge sharing and life-long
learning. It encourages employees to progress and excel everyday by

offering them comprehensive on-the-job training and focused

programme.

In developing a unique corporate culture, the Group
launched “the bossini way” in mid 2002 to share
with all staff its vision, mission and core values,
cultivating proactive and positive working
attitudes. Since May 2004, Bossini has been
cooperating with Right Management Hong
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Kong Ltd. to provide training for employees
in the "7 Habits®".

We believe a corporate culture embracing
“the bossini way” together with “7 Habits®"
would align the vision and thus the direction
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Be Proactive®
FEREE®

Begin with the End in Mind®

LK B 1A ®

Put First Things First®

250

Think Win Win®

EEEa®

Seek First to Understand, then to be Understood®
Mme®

Synergize®

BALH®

Sharpen the Saw®
THEH®

Face Reality
HERE

Keep it Simple

RIFAEIE

Act with the Speed of Light

HRRITE

Set Stretch Goals

EREISEE

Drive Quality

fHaKiE

Create and Sustain a Learning Organisation
BYBEESEAEE

Keep the A's, Nurture the B’s, Discard the C's
REBA - BEB - #HRC
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Human Resources

People are Bossini's most important asset and source of competitive advantage. Our success depends on the
strength of our talent and team work across different functions. Enhancing staff engagement, competencies and
building effective teams are our key strategies for continuous business growth.

As a company embracing the “7 Habits®” culture, Bossini continued to reinforce it during 2013/14 through
sharing our “7 Habits®” best practices with master students from tertiary institutions, executives from professional
institutions and organisations. This year, we received a recognition from FranklinCovey for our outstanding
and dedication in nurturing the “7 Habits®” culture. In addition to the “7 Habits®” and on-the-job trainings to
our staff, we provide a wide range of learning programmes and activities through the “Bossini Academy” and
knowledge management platform. Some programmes, such as management skills and leadership development
related ones, are established to enhance the soft skills of the targeted employees as part of their career
development plans; some are self-learning programmes via electronic means; others which bring staff out of the
classroom help to foster team bonding and collaboration. We also offer education subsidies to encourage our
staff to pursue personal excellence and professional development. As part of our talent development strategy, we
continue to nurture our Bossini Future Leaders by providing diversified exposures and learning opportunities for
further progression. Our efforts and commitment in human capital development has earned recognition for five
consecutive years as “Manpower Developer 1st” (MD 1st) by the Employees Retraining Board.

Bossini and our employees are bonded by our vision, mission and core values. To further promote them, we
have launched a “Better Ideas” employee suggestion programme and an e-library through our knowledge
management platform to encourage idea exchange and cultivate employee’s reading habits. These initiatives were
meticulously designed to unify and align our common goals and values across the Group.

Our brand value, “be happy”, captures the company’s genuine commitment to our employees. We deeply care
about the personal well-being of our staff. We have organised work-life balancing activities for employees,
implemented green projects at our own premises and carried out other activities to promote healthy living
practices. In the years ahead, we will continue our commitment and investment in human capital and aim at
creating a happy and sustainable organisation for all stakeholders.
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Corporate Social Responsibilities

As a caring and responsible corporate citizen, Bossini has been playing an active role to requite the communities
by undertaking a variety of corporate social responsibility programmes over the years and consequently we have
been awarded as a “Caring Company” by Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the tenth consecutive years.

In the fiscal year 2013/14, through the “Employee Volunteer Week”, a number of voluntary activities in our core
regions from serving the underprivileged to caring the environment have been launched, which included:

o Co-organising a party with Yan Chai Hospital Tsin Man Kuen Elderly Home in Hong Kong

. Collaborating with “25=5 475" E4M7E & RT3 TR~ 48 to organise birthday party for elderly
in Shenzhen

. Joining charity jogging which was organised by E/NEZ %5 & AL RIEH#SE in Guangzhou

. Organising blood donation with f&Z&BILH £ in Taiwan

o Gardening at Fort Canning Park’s Spice Garden in Singapore

In addition to the above initiatives, we have put forth extensive efforts in delivering pre-employment seminars in
campus and sharing interviewing skills for college students which helped to equip them with adequate knowledge
about the retail industry and foster positive values among the teenagers. We received affirmative responses from
both students and teachers.

We believe that Corporate Social Responsibility is an ongoing commitment. With full support from management,
we will continue to put forth our best efforts in helping people in need and work hands in hands with our staff
to contribute to the community we serve, we care and we love.
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Most Popular QTS Merchant Award Online Voting 2014 @ Caring Company

(by Hong Kong Tourism Board)

(by Hong Kong Council of

TVB Weekly Outstanding Award 2013

since 2004 @
(by TVB Weekly)

BRTABIROEBEERS2014 _ Social Service) (TVBE ) 4 i b 3 6 & A 22013
(858 i B R B ) AR R EIE 520045 B A (HTVBE FIAE )
(BB EREHEBE)

Outstanding QTS Merchant Award (Retail Category) 2014
(by Hong Kong Tourism Board)

HREEEEF-ERR (TEEH) 2014
(HBEBIRERRBEE)

TVB Weekly Most Popular Brand Award 2013 -
The Most Popular Apparel Brand
(by TVB Weekly)

(TVBATN)BBARMIEKRE2013-EZTENRERE
(FHTVB/E A 5E)

Singapore Quality Class 2014 @ Singapore Service Class 2014

(by SPRING Singapore) (by SPRING Singapore)
N3 & E 402014 ¥ b0 3% Bk 7% 422014
(B FTINR 125 /R 55) (BB FTINE 12 /5 EE)

bizSAFE Level 3 2014 @
(by The Workplace Safety and
Health Council)

People Developer 2014 @
(by SPRING Singapore)
ADERBEREE2014
(3T IR 1R B A )

Family-Friendly Employers 2013-2014
(by The Family Council)
REREEE2013-2014
(BREZESHE)

Happy Company 2014 @
(by Promoting Happiness Index Foundation)
B %2014
(B BIRHREIEHE S HIR A B HE)

[N
=1

Hong Kong Smoke-free Leading Company Awards 2013 @

(by Hong Kong Council on Smoking and H

ERBEEELEDLEKRE2013

(hEBREREFZE S

Manpower Developer 1st since 2010
(by Employees Retraining Board)

AT ¥ 1stEH2010FE A
(HIES BIZYI/BSHEE)

Recognition of outstanding effort in nurturing @

"The 7 Habits of Highly Effective People” culture 2014
(by FranklinCovey)

BHED SREALTHCETE I HEFR2014
(b & B 52 MR 4 2 IR )
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The Board is committed to maintain a solid, transparent and sensible framework of corporate governance for the
Company and its subsidiaries and will continue to review its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (“Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) as the Corporate Governance Code
("Code") of the Company. The Board is committed to complying with the Code Provisions as stated in the CG
Code to the extent that the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the
Company.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code, except for
the following deviation:

—  The Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the
continuity of the Chairman of the Company and her leadership are crucial in maintaining the stability of the
Group’s business operations.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
the leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the Board committees. To ensure the Board
is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly management
accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full and timely access to all relevant information and may
take independent professional advice if necessary.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Management Committee are more particularly discussed below.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 6 Directors in total, with 3 Executive Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED") whose biographical details are sent out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages 40 to 41 and
are posted on the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Directors during the year under review and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han
Prof. SIN Yat Ming

EFRAEK
EFRHAKBASL TENEE B LRRFBEE 2RI RER -

EEREMARBANNESEN  REZNRTESR B ILIEHR
TEE([BUIBTESR])  SES2HFECHFRNBI0BEEZEMNE
ZIEEHN | RABRIEwww. bossini.com o LA AR A B §E F & 7
WHEAREAPIENESE
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The Company currently has 4 Board committees. The table below provides membership information of these
committees on which each Director serves.

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

G ATEER R -

Nomination Committee

Management Committee

Name of Directors EE# & EREZEEE FMZEEE REZEE EEZEY
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess #5 £ 8 22 & - M C C
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 2812 2 5t 4 - - M M
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul [ & 5 5t £ - - - M
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond Z= X {8 5t 4 M M M -
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 22384 + C C M -
Prof. SIN Yat Ming %t H BE 2k % M M M =

Notes: M5t

C  Chairman of the relevant Board committees C EFHESEZEENER

M Member of the relevant Board committees M ABEHEEZEe8KE

The Directors had no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship with each other at 30
June 2014.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least 1 INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified range
of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Group as a whole.

RZZE-—NFXA=1TH EFZHELEMH X% RELEME
RRABIAE -
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All INEDs of the Company are appointed for specific terms, their length of service with the Company is 1 year
from the dates of their appointments which will be automatically renewed unless early termination by either party
serving not less than 3 months prior written notice or upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company (“AGM") in accordance with
the Bye-laws of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. Currently, Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess is the
Chairman and Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund is the Chief Executive Officer. The positions of Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals in order to preserve independence and a balance of views
and judgement.

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and set out in writing.
The Chairman is responsible for the overall direction of the Group. Supported by the other Executive Director and
senior management, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
of the Group.

Re-election of Independent Non-executive Directors who has served for more
than nine years

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond has served as an Independent Non-executive Director for more than 9 years, who
would retire at the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 November 2014. To comply with
Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, his re-election as Director should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by Shareholders.

The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Lee remains independent notwithstanding the length of his service and
believes that his valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business and his general business acumen
continue to generate significant contribution to the Board, the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The
Company'’s circular to be despatched to Shareholders on or about 9 October 2014 will contain the biographical
information of Mr. Lee and the reasons why the Board believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference. It comprises
5 members, namely, Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. MAK Tak Cheong
Edmund, Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. For appointment of new
Director, the background, experience, professional skills, availability to commit to the affairs of the Company and,
in case of INED, the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules, of the potential appointee will be
taken into consideration.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, all newly appointed Director shall hold office until the next AGM and
shall then be eligible for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director, save any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing Director,
including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their last election
but as between persons who became Directors on the same day shall be determined by lot, unless they otherwise
agree between themselves. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the continuity
of the Chairman of the Company and her leadership is crucial in maintaining the stability of the Group’s business
operations.

The Company’s circular to be dispatched to Shareholders on or about 9 October 2014 will contain detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There
are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

EENLZELREE
ARBEKZIREZE S UERGTHBELSE KEXFRE
DHIRESRRET(RBZBEXRE)  ERELLE  FTELLE R
EMLZTRABRABER ERERENHESFHK 2TEEER K
B BERDERAQRZHBER  ERBUHFATES  AIFF
BRLEMHRUAMINE 2B IEESL

REARRNERZMANY  SRREFTRZACNNES  ANTHSK
BEETRERERRBFRGAL  UNAEEREEEME REERREF
AREL ERN=DZ HWEZ/ABAFF==VF8 - QI&ER
BERBB=2ZWNEFE (BIXIRFRAEFTHLEZEETHRIN AR
BRE EEBUESREEREEABHZETFARSBE=-FREREI
ReBFEASRZERERBES LAEREREZEURTIHERZ
EF EMBB - REZSIRAAKRAES  MIUMEREEREIZ
EF(WRERTENBRAUZERNR) - REEFAIEERET -

ARANERITERERCOREFRNR - EFBRARAANLR
MBEERAAS  DENSEELERTNWNREES

ARARER _ZE—NFE+ANBAZBIERFETRRERNBHEEE
EHEEEXSENFE -

EHFZIEFRZIRYV SRS RE2E  ERRIAGEATENA
BiEsl MEREREAEEXBLEFEREN TR Y2EATE
REBELTRRBEZEVRET 2BEREE -EEFTER  AQF
NERFAEZTRHSEGNLEXER  BRAARQRERE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 3%



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
JL~,'_¢:sAiﬁ¢ 27

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and developments relating to the Group’s RRABIRAEBMEBRERBRELEAREEREZZH  RTHNESH

business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board meetings. CHEANNESIRUETHERLEY
The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. All BEAEBTOEEATAEBESIEIIZ TRIEXEALSE  BHE
Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and —E-PNFEANAZTHILEFE  2RESHEQHEREEFRSEN
skills and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 30 June 2014 to the Company. BREEZEEEESE  WERARFHRBRESMESEI Lk -
The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 30 June 2014 is summarised below: EEENEE T NFEAA=THILFEMEIEIZER T
R
Visiting senior management Attending seminars/forums/
of other companies/institutions workshops/conferences relevant
and company’s facilities Attending internal briefing sessions to the business or directors’ duties
Reading regulatory updates RaHM AT BN (including delivery of speeches) HEFREBRESHEN
Name of Directors EE % % MREERENENER BREBEBRA ARG HEABNERS (BIERMAER) WHE wE THEYS R
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess & € 18 & + v - v v
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 212 & %t & v/ 4 v/ v
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B & & % 4 v v v v
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond Z= 3 f& % & v = = =
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han £ %+ v - v 7
Prof. SIN Yat Ming £ B 8B #(I% v/ - v/ v
Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitments SF 7HEERNAMN LSRR
For the year ended 30 June 2014, the Board met 6 times including for considering and approving the audited HE_Z—NWENA=-THIIFEE BEROVBTAAESSE  TEZ
annual results for the year ended 30 June 2013, unaudited results for the 6 months ended 31 December 2013, ERMESE " E—=—FEXA-1THIFENSERLFEEE H2
continuing connected transactions, and budget of the Group for the year ending 30 June 2015. At these board —E—=F+ A=+ —HIFrAHARNEAEEZEE BEEEXS
meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group’s business updates and strategies. RAREEBEE _E—AFAA=-THLEENIKEE - RZZEES

BeEL EERIVR LA RS BN EGE R KR -
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and annual general meeting for the year ended 30 June 2014 is set out
below:

FEENHE_T-OFAA=ZTHLEFENESR BRZEE
¥HzEg - ?E%;E@@a@%&ﬂﬁ?i@ﬁkgzlﬂj}%?—%ﬁﬁlmu?— :

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit

Board Meeting Committee Meeting
Name of Directors EE# & ESREE ERZEReH

HER T EERE
Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Meeting Committee Meeting General Meeting
FMESEEE REZEEEH BREAFA®

Executive Directors $1{TE 5

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess $£ 2184 + 5/6 N/A
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 2812 2 5t 4 6/6 N/A
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B £ 5t % 4 6/6 N/A

Independent Non-executive Directors Bk H TEE

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond Z= 3£ % 4 2/6 1/2
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 2& %+ 6/6 2/2
Prof. SIN Yat Ming & H BE k% 6/6 22

0/1 0/1 7
N/A 7 7
N/A N/A 71
0/1 0/1 71

17 7 7
171 7 7

The Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the Company’s external auditor attended the 2013 annual general
meeting and were available to answer questions.

Practices and conduct of meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board
and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

EXZRTIFE ERZBEGIE - %?M§E“%Ir— RAZBEEER R
AABIMNEZBEAELFE T =ZFRRAFAEHEREMA -

T E AR T A

EERTHERNBEHEERETNES THRAZBESHL -
ERHEMEFTRREEEERBE I RRAENEHEAREL -

EERXMERMEBEE  ZERUENEN -—BNEEERAEZE
EERBTAELRAZBEFEL  BEEFHTHARRRED
HIM B R RO - EMEME TEHIRE °
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The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the Directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group’s operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comments and records respectively. The Board member can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group’s expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has determined
this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his interest and to abstain from voting. At least
1 INED who has no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting approving such
transaction.

Board Committees

The Company currently have 4 committees, namely, the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The attendance of individual
committee members is set out hereinabove.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate governance of the Group and comprises 3 INEDs, namely
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung, who has professional
qualifications in accounting and financial management expertise, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. No
member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external auditors and Internal Audit
Department to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial results for the
year ended 30 June 2014.

EEZR—FRICAOREREE EFERFLFELEBETAER
TAZE - THEFRERNFHRR LBFEDLHR - HRkAE
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The terms
of reference for the Audit Committee are also aligned with the guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year to review the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group with an Executive Director, senior management and the Company’s internal and external auditors. It
also discuss matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management, appointment of external
auditors and corporate governance. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the interim and annual
results of the Group. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

The major works of the Audit Committee during the year are as follows:

(@) reviewed the financial results for the year ended 30 June 2013 and interim financial results for the 6 months
ended 31 December 2013;

(b) reviewed the progress report and report on internal audit results and internal controls for the year ended 30
June 2013 and 6 months ended 31 December 2013 prepared by Internal Audit Department respectively; and
(c) approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ending 30 June 2015 of Internal Audit

Department.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external auditors on its independence and
objectivity as required by the HKICPA.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee consists of 1 Executive Director and 3 INEDs, namely Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, Mr.
LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. Ms. Leung is the Chairman for the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference
which included the duties specified in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The attendance
of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

No Director is involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration. The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to
provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff. The Company adopted
Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting. The major works of the
Remuneration Committee during the year are as follows:

(@) recommended the proposed adjustment to the remuneration of Executive Directors and their proposed
performance bonus; and

(b) recommended the proposed changes to the remuneration packages of INEDs.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 30 June 2014 is set out
below:

Emolument bands (HK$) Number of persons A £k

Below $2,000,000 4
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 3
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 1
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises 5 members, the majority of which are INEDs, namely Ms. TSIN Man Kuen
Bess (Chairman of the committee), Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms. LEUNG Mei
Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. In identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee shall consider candidates on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board;

(c) review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually;

(d) assess the independence of INEDs; and

(e) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the
future, together with the Board, as appropriate.
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During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to review
the re-appointment of Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated to the Management Committee the authority of dealing with the operational matters
of the Group, save for those matters which are reserved for the Board'’s decision and approval pursuant to the
written terms of reference, which includes taking in charge of major decision making in relation to the day-to-
day business operations of the Company, administering the Company’s routine resolutions and dealing with
adhoc matters, ensuring adequate funding and reporting periodically to the Board. The Management Committee
consists of 3 Executive Directors and assumes full accountability to the Board for all operation of the Group.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged
by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties with its written terms of reference
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate governance code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company's corporate governance practices and the
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the board meeting held in
September 2013.

Company Secretary

Ms. WONG Suk May joined the Group in 2004 and has been the Company Secretary of the Company since 2007.
She is an employee of a fellow subsidiary of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. As the Company Secretary, Ms. Wong supports the Board by ensuring board procedures and all applicable
law, rules and regulations are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters and
facilitates induction and professional development of the Directors. The appointment and dismissal of the
company secretary are subject to the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the Company
Secretary reports to the Chief Executive Officer on the Group’s company secretarial and corporate governance
matters, all Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules, the company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in the
year under review.
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Internal Controls and Internal Audit

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective system of internal controls particularly
in respect of the controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk management, to achieve the Company’s
business strategies and the Group’s business operation. During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the system of internal controls through the Audit Committee.

The Group’s internal controls are evaluated by the Internal Audit Department independently, operating since
August 2002, on an on-going basis and covered all major operations of the Group on a rotational basis. The key
tasks of which include:

(@) reviewing material aspects of the Group’s key activities and corresponding internal controls with unrestricted
rights of access;

(b) conducting audits on the work practices, procedures and internal controls established by the business units
of the Group on a regular basis in order to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls
system established;

(c) conducting special reviews and investigations into areas of concern identified by management; and
(d) monitoring the corrective actions taken by relevant departments.

The internal audit charter was approved and adopted by the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department
adopted a risk-based approach to develop the annual audit plan, which is reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee. It furnishes independent and objective evaluations and recommendations in the form of an audit
report to management. Internal Audit staff is authorised to access any information relating to the Company and
to make enquiries to staff concerned, and the head of the Internal Audit Department will directly report to the
Audit Committee on the major audit findings and management responses.

The Internal Audit Department reports twice each year to the Audit Committee and the Board on significant
findings on internal controls. The Board has, through the works of the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit
Department, carried out ongoing examination and monitoring of the Company’s internal controls system and
completed the evaluation of the internal controls system.
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The Bossini Group Policy sets forth a set of standards to all employees to govern the operations of the Group
in legal, financial, procurement, human resources, corporate governance and public relation spheres, and will
facilitate the ongoing examination and evaluation of the Group’s compliance with relevant rules and regulations
and of the effectiveness of internal controls. Employees are expected to strictly adhere to the Bossini Group Policy
and encouraged to alert senior management of potential cases of misconduct without fear of retribution. The
Bossini Group Policy was first issued in March 2004. It is taken up for review and renewal on an annual basis by
the designated Group Policy Committee.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the director’s securities transactions in terms
as stringent as those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code") contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Bossini Group Policy throughout the year. Employees are not
encouraged to deal in the securities of the Company within 30 days and 60 days before the interim and the annual
results announcements respectively and prohibited to make use of inside information to deal in the securities of
the Company.

Directors’ interest at 30 June 2014 in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") are set out on
pages 47 to 48.

Financial Reporting and External Auditors” Remuneration

The Directors acknowledge the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and of the results and cash flows of the Group on a going concern basis with the support
from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Group’s external auditors with respect to the financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 67 to 68.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the Group
amounted to HK$3.06 million, of which a sum of HK$2.23 million was paid to the Group's principal external
auditor, Ernst & Young (“EY"). The remuneration for EY in respect of audit services and non-audit services
amounted to approximately HK$2.23 million and HK$0.70 million respectively.
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Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2014. The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this annual report.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend
declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in, among other things, the Bye-laws and the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (“Company Act”).

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or at the registered office of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called can be sent to the principal place of
business of the Company as set out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a resolution relating to matters in a general meeting
by following the requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.
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Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of
members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall give Shareholders notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under bye-law 102(A) of the Bye-laws, Shareholders are entitled to elect any person to be a Director at the
annual general meeting or at any special general meeting by following the requirement set out in bye-law 103 of
the Bye-laws. Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available on the Company’s
website at www.bossini.com.

Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3, the Company will arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days
for all other general meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors. Where bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company
shall explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meetings are
contained in the Bye-laws. In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put to vote at
general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll except where the chairman of the meeting, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands. Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent to Shareholders
prior to each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll. After each
general meeting, the poll results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the
manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders” Communication Policy

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the Group to Shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information
is also available to Shareholders through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board
also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
Shareholder’s meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.
Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investor Relations section in the Company’s website
www.bossini.com at IR@bossini.com for any enquiries.

Corporate Transparency and Investor Relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets individually with analysts and institutional investors
from time to time to facilitate their analysis on the Group. The Company also holds group meetings with them in
which the Company’s management directly distributes relevant information and addresses to their queries.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents for the year ended 30 June 2014.
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Executive Directors

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess v, aged 60, was appointed as the Executive Chairman of the Company in October
2010, is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Ms. Tsin joined the Group in November 2009 as the Non-executive Chairman of the Company. She
received the “Medal of Honour” (MH) from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administration Region
in 2008. Ms. Tsin is currently the permanent advisor of the board of directors of Yan Chai Hospital. She was the
chairman of the board of directors of Yan Chai Hospital from 2007 to 2008, the vice-chairman of the board of
directors of Yan Chai Hospital from 2002 to 2007 and the director of Yan Chai Hospital from 1997 to 2002.
She has over 14 years' experience in serving as the school supervisor and director of certain schools of Yan Chai
Hospital. She is responsible for the overall direction of the Group.

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund, aged 50, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group in October
2010, he is also a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Mak graduated from the University
of Windsor, Canada with two Bachelor’s Degrees in Computer Science and Commerce. He is also a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Mak joined the Group in February 2007 as the Director of Finance. He has over 24
years' experience in auditing, financial management and corporate finance in audit firm, consumer electronics
and communications products, real estate service, food retail chain and internet service industries. Mr. Mak is
responsible for the overall management and strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul, aged 43, was appointed as the Executive Director and the Director of Finance of
the Group in August 2010. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada and the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration. He is also a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 20 years’ experience in auditing and financial management with audit firm and
various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall financial management, legal,
internal audit and investor relation functions of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 88s, Jp, aged 43, was appointed in September 2004, is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is
the chairman as well as founder of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 2314). He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Applied Science from The University of British Columbia in Canada. Mr. Lee is currently involved in a number of
public engagements. Mr. Lee has been awarded honorary citizenship of Dongguan and reputational citizenship of
Changshu. Mr. Lee was awarded the “Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 2002" and the “2003 Hong Kong
Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection Awardees”. In addition, Mr. Lee received the “Bronze Bauhinia Star”
(BBS) from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2005 and was also appointed non-
official Justice of the Peace (JP) in 2007. Mr. Lee was also appointed the CPPCC National Committee in 2008. In
2011, Mr. Lee was appointed as Vice President of China Paper Association. He was appointed as Fifth President
(January to December 2014) of Centum Charitas Foundation.

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han, aged 56, was appointed in September 2004, is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee and a member of Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Leung holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce from The University of Queensland, Australia and is a fellow member of CPA
Australia. She has over 29 years' experience in accounting, securities, corporate finance and related areas. Ms.
Leung is an independent non-executive director of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited (stock code: 374) and
Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 629) both are listed on the Stock Exchange and also an executive
director of AMCO United Holding Limited (stock code: 630) listed on the Stock Exchange. She was an independent
non-executive director of Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited (presently known as China Dredging Environment
Protection Holdings Limited) (stock code: 871) from 2011 to May 2013, which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 59, was appointed in October 2005, is also a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prof. Sin holds a Ph.D. from The
University of British Columbia, Canada. He is an independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1446) listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of Master of Science
Programme in Marketing and a professor of Department of Marketing of The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2010, 30 June 2011, 30 June 2012, 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2014, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

NTAAEEHZE T —ZTF A A=1TH  ZE——FA=1TH  ZZT—ZFRA=1TH  ZT—=F A=THERZZ—HWFA=THILAAFEZ¥E EERBERHE - &k
BETIBEEXIMB®RE
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Year ended 30 June

BEXA=THLFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF —T—=F —E-=F —ET——fF —ET-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T BT BT BT T
REVENUE & % 2,548,040 2,517,167 2,743,707 2,641,967 2,306,260
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & E £ 155 Rl 154,994 46,132 54,242 167,567 114,421
Finance costs &b & A% 2K - (81) (8,798) (7,548) (4,939)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX &%t A7 5% 7 154,994 46,051 45,444 160,019 109,482
Income tax expense FT/5 &5 & (27,898) (23,842) (29,445) (29,906) (19,031)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
ARBEBEANEEFRNEF 127,096 22,209 15,999 130,113 90,451
Assets and Liabilities BE K& & &
At 30 June
WAA=+H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF —T—=F —E-=F —T——fF —T-TF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T BT BT BT T
TOTAL ASSETS B E A& 1,154,253 1,084,347 1,089,629 1,335,894 1,169,217
TOTAL LIABILITIES & & & E (352,004) (355,743) (363,915) (538,460) (437,444)
802,249 728,604 725,714 797,434 731,773
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EERHES

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2014.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends
The Group's profit for the year and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at 30 June 2014 are
set out in the financial statements on pages 69 to 171.

An interim dividend of HK2.30 cents per ordinary share was paid by the Company on 7 April 2014. The
directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.17 cents per ordinary share and a special
final dividend of HK1.56 cents per ordinary share in respect of year to shareholders whose names appear on
the principal or branch register of members of the Company in Bermuda or Hong Kong respectively on 19
November 2014. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial position.

Summary of financial information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 30 June 2010,
2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014, as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out on page
42. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s
investment properties are set out on page 172.
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BREREE
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Share capital and share options
There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital during the year.

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share options during the year are set out in
notes 28 and 29, respectively, to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 30 June 2014, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$234,570,000, of which HK$51,574,000 and
HK$25,380,000 have been proposed as a final dividend and a special final dividend, respectively, for the year.
Under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$21,606,000, may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major customers and suppliers
In the year under review, sales to the Group's largest customer and five largest customers accounted for 13%
and 19% of the total sales for the year, respectively.

Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 11% and 35% of the total
purchases for the year, respectively.

Save as disclosed in note 35(a)(i) to the financial statements, none of the directors of the Company or any of
their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group'’s five largest suppliers.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han

Prof. SIN Yat Ming

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund and Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond, Ms.
LEUNG Mei Han and Prof. SIN Yat Ming, and considers them to be independent.

Directors’ biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on pages 40 to 41 of the annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ remuneration
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the board of directors or executive
directors on the basis of their merit, qualification and competence.

The emoluments payable to the directors of the Company will be decided by the board of directors on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2014, the interests of the directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FREBE - 5ORERME

EEME
AEEES W BEMEERRANTEFRESY AR AERE
e «

ARREE MERMEZRRFTNEE S EERERTZRBY  BE
RRBURKEBE 2 XEMETE -

EERROREBKRG 2 ER

RZZB-—NERNA=1TH  EERAQRFAXEEEEZE (REESFRBE
1B (138 5 R BB 1651 1) EXVERPTE T 2 B3%) 2 A REERGmF
BEEARAABRES RPERGIFEI2GTE 2 BLMACHE s
HRE LT RREFETESKHNEETR (MRETA ) BARNEAR
BAIREBME X ZAARNE ([BAPT]) 2 EHENT

RAEL A BBRZAE

Directly Percentage of
beneficially the Company’s
Note owned Total issued shares
HiE HARARE BT
Name of director hE=3 BREE &t BRHAEIL EENE
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (a) 1,093,091,098 1,093,091,098 67.19 B2/ T
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares (continued)
Long positions in share options of the Company
Number of options directly
beneficially owned

EERNROREBAKRG 2B (&)
REL FIEREZ 4B

Name of directors EREEHECERERE BEEHF

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 6,500,000 BEeBrL

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 25,678,000 BEEXE

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 6,710,000 PR 2 Sk o A
38,888,000

Note: MyaE -

(@) Such interests arose by attribution through her spouse, Mr. LAW Ka Sing, whose interests have been mentioned in the
section headed “Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

(a) FRARGDVEBERBERELLFH HERENZERERVBMN &E
RARD 2 #es | —Hf o

BREXPEEEN RZT-—NFERA=1TH EZEMERLRFIHE
EAREOEE Z By - HERMHES® - FEERERE S RIS KA
E3S2E T AR EETORR - HRBRETRAMNS AR R RER
P2 s SOK R ©

E=REROIESZ ZEF

B EXEFRB KRR 2 et — 8 R N X&) —&0
PIREEIN  RRABRAFEANEASHABER TEMNEFTARES A
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Share option scheme

On 12 November 2013, the Company terminated its then share option scheme adopted on 27 November
2003 (the “2003 Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) (collectively the
“Schemes”) on the same date which has a term of 10 years from its adoption. The options which have been
granted and remained outstanding and/or committed as of the date shall continue to follow the provisions of
the 2003 Scheme and the Listing Rules.

The Schemes are for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the Schemes are disclosed in note 29 to the financial

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

BRETE

R-E-—=F+—HA+-B XRARKRIIEERR _ZZE=F+—H
:+‘|:EI%"<%WZE§H§%§+§U(F:$E_¢ FHE1)) - SRR AR FTIE IR
a8 ([T —=F5t8l) (BB ZFE)) -  ERMET /I TF -
Fﬁfa?‘ﬁﬂrﬁiﬂ@&/&ﬂﬁ EREZBRRERAEEER_TT=
FRTE 2 EX R ETHRAZRE °

ZEHBEENRERBHARBXEFHERZAERSEE - %F

B2 BRI RRM 29K E -

TREBFNER RN RTEBRE 28

Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
RZB-=F RZB-WF REBRE
SEATHZRER tA-B FREH FRTHE FRRK ~A=1H B BRETES BRECRE
GED) (Fiztb)
HK$
per share
BREY T
Directors %
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 800,000 — — — 800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780
BERLL —E-TE+TA+ZH “2——%tA+ZRE
“E-TRFTAT-A
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“F-FF+HA+ZH “F=FtAT-HE
“Z-TETAT-H
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780
—Z-TE+A+ZA —LFE+A+ZBEE
—ZZEtTAT—H
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570
—=%+-AZH (P &Ed())
4,000,000 2,500,000 = = 6,500,000

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EBEER AR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EERBEE

Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

Number of share options

BREE (&)
TEREBFARRBHARTERREZZS - ()

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-B-=% R=ZZ-WF REBRE
SHEALEERER tA-8 FEREH FRTHE FREY ~A=1H HE BRETES BRECRE
GED) (FizEb)
HK$
per share
BRA%T
Directors %

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 1,200,000 - = = 1,200,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530

BEEEE T FLANA —TE\FLANAEZE

“T-tFtA=H
1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530

ZZELFLANA ZZ-TELANAEE

—T-tFtA=H
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530

ZZZLFLANA ZZ-ZFtANBE

—T-t+FtA=H
1,080,000 - - (402,000) 678,000 5 July 2010 (note c(i)) 0.503

—Z-TF+ATA )
2,800,000 - = = 2,800,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“E-ZF+H+ZH “Z——%5tA+-RAZE

ZZZZE+AT—H
4,200,000 - - - 4,200,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“E-ZF+A+ZH “E-=ftA+=RZ%

ZZZZE+AT—H
7,000,000 = = = 7,000,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“E-ZF+H+ZH -1 tHAT=RZE

L A
570,000 - = (570,000) - 12 October 2010 (note c(ii)) 0.780

e s = (Bt 3Ec(i))
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570

“E-=%+_-ACH (B Ed())

21,650,000 5,000,000 - (972,000) 25,678,000
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Share option scheme (continued) BBRESTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TREBFARDARAHRTERREZES : (8)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHA
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
RZB-Z% R-B-IF R RE
SEATHEZRER tA-A FREY FRTHE FREYR AA=tH =h BRETES BRETHEE
(Hista) (Kiztb)
HK$
per share
BRAE%T
Directors E%
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 240,000 - - - 240,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 0.370
BREHEE “EELET—ATAA —ZENF+—ATNEBEZE
S o Ny AN =
360,000 - - - 360,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 0.370
2T+ —ATAA :§§ﬂ$+—ﬂ+ﬂ5§
—tE+—-ATN\R
600,000 - - = 600,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 0.370
ZEELET-ATAA “E-TEF-ATNRE
“E—tF+—-A+TNR
360,000 - - (150,000) 210,000 5 July 2010 (note c(i)) 0.503
—Z-ZFtHAA (P =Ec())
560,000 - - - 560,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780
W = I e =
“E-TF+A+—H
840,000 - - - 840,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780
—E-ZTETHA+ZH —Z-=5THA+ZRAE
“E-ZE+AT—H
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780
“F-FF+A+=A T AFTAT-HE
“F-FFtA1-6
150,000 - - (150,000) - 12 October 2010 (note cfii) 0.780
—Z-TF+ATZA (Bt sEc(i))
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570
E—=F+-f=H (GE0)
510,000 2,500,000 - (300,000) 6,710,000
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Share option scheme (continued) BB RS E ()
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TEREEFARNDE)MRITEEREZE - (B)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHR
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R=B-=% R-B-mE BHBRE
SEATHEZRET tA-A EREH FRTE ERRIK AA=tH B BRETHES BRECHEE
GED) GED)
HKS
per share
FRAST
Other employees g &
In aggregate 1,400,000 - - (800,000) 600,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 0.530
A ZETLFLANA ST \FLANEZRE
T+t A=H
2,100,000 - - (1,200,000) 900,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 0.530
T +F+ANA —ET-TELAMEAZE
—Z—t+E+A=H
8,000,000 - (2,500,000) (2,000,000) 3,500,000 4 July 2007 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 0.530
—ZE+E+ANA “T-—4+tAmAZE
—E—+%+HA=H
240,000 - - - 240,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 0.370
“EELET-ATAR “EINEH-ATAAE
e e R WA=
660,000 - - - 660,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 0.370
“RRLET-ATAA “EEAFH-AHARE
—E—+&+—-A+/N\H
1,800,000 - (600,000) - 1,200,000 19 November 2007 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 0.370
“2RLEt-ATAR ~2-$£t-AtARE
—F—tF+-ATAB
3,000,000 - (1,522,000) - 1,478,000 26 March 2008 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 0.357
—EEN\EZA=1XA By Py b= Y
“E-\F=AZTHhA
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

BREE (|
TEREBFARRBHARTERBREZZS : ()

Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-B-=F RZB-NF REBRE
SEATHZRER tA-A FRRY FRTE FRRK ~A=tH B BRETES BRETHEE
GED) (F#zEb)
HK$
per share
BRAEET
Other employees £ g &

In aggregate 1,140,000 = (540,000) = 600,000 15 July 2008 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 0.333

A “EZ)\FtATAA “E——ftAt+HRZE

—Z-\FtA+MA
900,000 = (560,000) = 340,000 15 July 2008 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 0.333

“EZ)\FtATAA “E-=ftATHRZE

—Z-\FtATHNA
600,000 = = = 600,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 0.160

“ZEN\FTHA=1—H “ZENFTA=T-HE

“Z-\$tHA=tH
900,000 = = = 900,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 0.160

“EEN\FETA=T-H “Z——4%+HA=t-HE

“E-\F+A=TH
1,500,000 = = = 1,500,000 31 October 2008 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 0.160

“ZEN\FTA=1—H “Z-Z4tHA=t-HE

—Z-\F+H=TH
480,000 = = = 480,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 0.456

—T-ZF_AEH “E—%5_AQNRE

—E-FTF-A=H
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EERBEE

Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

BRESE (&)
TEREBFARRBHARTERREZZS : ()

Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R=B-=F R=ZZ-WF REBRE
SEATHERER tA-H FEREH FRTHE FREY ~A=tH HE BRETES BRECRE
GED) (GED)
HKS
per share
BRA%T
Other employees g &

In aggregate 720,000 - - - 720,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 0.456

ax “Z-T5-_AMA “Z-_4-AMmBZ%

—2-_F5_H=H
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 4 February 2010 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 0.456

—T-TE-AMNEA “E-ZH#-_AMAZE

—2_F%_H=H
11,960,000 = (428,000) (8,628,000) 2,904,000 5 July 2010 (note (i) 0.503

“Z-ZTFtARA EO))
992,000 - - - 992,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“F-FF+A+=A ZF——%tAt+ZHE

“E-EE+AT—H
648,000 = = = 648,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“F-FTFTATZA “F-CHFTATZHE

“ECEE+AT-H
1,920,000 = = = 1,920,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780

“F-FF+ATCA

“F-=F+tA+TZRE
“E-B4tAt+-H
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BREE (&)
TEREBFARRBHARTERBREZZS : ()

Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:
(continued)

Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-Z2-=% R-B-NEF R R
SHEALEERER tA-8 FREH FRTHE FEREY ~A=tH HE BRETES BRECRE
G (FizEb)
HK$
per share
BRAEET
Other employees £ g &

In aggregate 1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780

A ZZ-TF+A+=H “Z-AFtTATZHE

“Z-ZFTAT—H
254,000 - - (254,000) - 12 October 2010 (note c(ii) 0.780

“E-ZF+H+ZH (B ecii))
175,000 = = (93,000) 82,000 3 January 2011 (note c(iii)) 0.922

—Z——%—-A=H (B &Eciii))
80,000 - - (80,000) - 3 May 2011 (note c(iv)) 0.894

—T——%8H=H (B Eciv)
216,000 - - (216,000) - 4 July 2011 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2021 0.880

—E——FtANA Tt AMNAZE

—Z--%+tH=H
324,000 - - (324,000) - 4 July 2011 4 July 2013 to 3 July 2021 0.880

—T——FtHAWNA —T-=4$tHAmAZE

S
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Share option scheme (continued)

The following table discloses movements in

(continued)

the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

BRESE (&)
TEREBFARRBHARTERREZZS : ()

Number of share options
BREZE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-B-=% R-EB-NEF R B
SEATHEZRER tA-B FRRE FRTHE FRRK ~A=tH A BRECES BRETHEE
GED) (FizEb)
HKS
per share
BRA%T
Other employees g &

In aggregate 540,000 - - (540,000) - 4 July 2011 4 July 2014 to 3 July 2021 0.880

A —T——4%+tHNEA —E-MELANAE

ZEZ-FtA=H
296,000 = = (242,000) 54,000 4 July 2011 (note c(v)) 0.880

—E-——FtAMEA (FfsEc(v)
240,000 - - (240,000) - 1 November 2011 1 November 2012 to 31 October 2021 0.720

—F-——%t-A-H —F-“ft-A-HE

“E-Z-f+R=+—H
360,000 - - (360,000) - 1 November 2011 1 November 2013 to 31 October 2021 0.720

—E——f+-A—H “E-=f+t—-HA-RB%

—Z_-%tA=t—-H
600,000 - - (600,000) - 1 November 2011 1 November 2014 to 31 October 2021 0.720

—E—%+—-fA—H “E-NF+—-A—HZE

“E--f+A=+—H
86,000 - - (86,000) - 1 November 2011 (note c(vi)) 0.720

—E—%+—-A—H (P FEc(vi))
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Share option scheme (continued) BRESTE (&)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year: TRFPEFRNRNAG MRITHEEREY &8 (8)
(continued)
Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-B-=F RZB-NF REBRE
SEATHERER tA-H FREH FRTHE FEREY ~A=tH HE BRETES BRECRE
GED) (F#zEb)
HK$
per share
BRAEET
Other employees H S
In aggregate 162,000 - - (130,000) 32,000 3 January 2012 (note c(vii)) 0.590
=¥ —T——-§—HA=H (P &EC(vii))
122,000 = = (78,000) 44,000 2 May 2012 (note c(viii)) 0.550
—T—-#AA=H (B FEcviii))
240,000 = = = 240,000 3 July 2012 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2022 0.490
B = “E-=F+tHA=HZE
—T__F+HA_H
360,000 = = = 360,000 3 July 2012 3 July 2014 to 2 July 2022 0.490
—T-_%+A=H “E-WELA=RZE
—E-—®+A-H
600,000 = = = 600,000 3 July 2012 3 July 2015 to 2 July 2022 0.490
—T--f%tHA=H —T-RFLH=RZE
—Z__fF+tHZH
158,000 = = (68,000) 90,000 3 July 2012 (note c(ix)) 0.490
—E—-&#+H=AH (PR 3Ec(ix)
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

BBk S8 ()
TREBFARRBHARTEBREZES : (B)

Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-B-=% R=ZZ-WF REBRE
SHEALEERER tA-8 FEREH FRTHE FREY ~A=1H HE BRETES BRECRE
GED) (GED)
HK$
per share
BRA%T
Other employees H S

In aggregate 240,000 — — — 240,000 2 January 2013 2 January 2014 to 1 January 2023 0.425

&t —T—=%—HAZH —E-MF-RZHE

—E-=%—-H—H
360,000 - - - 360,000 2 January 2013 2 January 2015 to 1 January 2023 0.425

—E-=F—H=H —T-HF¥—HZHZ

—T_=%—-H—H
600,000 — — - 600,000 2 January 2013 2 January 2016 to 1 January 2023 0.425

—T-—=%—HZH —“E-R"¥—-HZR=E

—E_=%—-H—H
28,000 - - - 28,000 2 January 2013 (note c(x)) 0.425

—E-=F—HA=H (P FEc(x))
36,000 - - (36,000) - 1 March 2013 (note c(xi)) 0.435

—E—=%=HA—H (P 3Ec(xi))
- 40,546,000 - - 40,546,000 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570

—E-=F+ZHZH (B &Ed())
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Share option scheme (continued)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the year:

(continued)

BBk 8 (8
TREBFARRBHARTEBREZES : (8)

Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Forfeited At Date of Exercise
Name or category 1 July during during during 30 June grant of Exercise period price of
of participants 2013 the year the year the year 2014 share options of share options  share options
(note a) (note b)
R-B-=F RZB-NF REBRE
SHEALEERER tA-8 FREH FRTE FEREY ~A=tH B BRETES BRECRE
GED) (F#zEb)
HK$
per share
BRAEET
Other employees H S
In aggregate - 492,000 - - 492,000 2 January 2014 (note d(ii)) 0.570
=¥ —E-mME—-HA_H (Pt =)
- 122,000 - - 122,000 3 March 2014 (note d(iii)) 0.714
—Z-m¥=A=H (P &Ed(iii))
47,637,000 41,160,000 (6,150,000) (15,975,000) 66,672,000
77,797,000 51,160,000 (6,150,000) (17,247,000) 105,560,000

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EBEER AR
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Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year:

(@) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

(b) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(c) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees
and the achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2013,
including but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance
targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall be forfeited if the relevant 3-year corporate goals
cannot be achieved.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:

(i)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020.

(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 11 October 2020.

(iii) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021.

(iv) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 May 2021.

(v) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021.

BRESE (&)
FRREARITER ISR E

(a)

(b)

BREAUPAERE AR ERITESHEMA AL -

B IR 17 68 AT RIS (AR SR B (T ALAR + SR 2 RIS 2 EL AL I
BB TR -

BERENBBXENARANRARBE_Z—=FHA=1H

LE =8 - ZJSE@i;@J FRERR (BRETRNEBRKE
B BHEREEXRRBFR) SHERR - HAELEXNBHR=-F&HE
BiE - HERRE R A SO KR -

BRETERET

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

HTHEAREEEE " T-—=FNA=THILFEZEEREE
EENMEREENEEARGTE E-F-_TFLAWA -

HHUBAEEBE T =F "A=THILFEZLREREA
RENMERERNZXARGKRTR 2T -_TF A+ R -

HHUEASEHE_T-—=FNA=TRHLFEZREREA
RENMEREENEEARGTE E-F-_—F—H-H-

HHEREERHE T =F A=TRHIFEZLEREA
REAMREERNEXARBTE 2T _—FHA-R -

HHBAEEHE " T—=F A=1THILFREZEEREE
RENMREENEERAMGTE E-F-_—F+LHA=H-

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 F#&



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
gxppsz (0]

Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year: (continued)

()

The exercise periods of share options are as follows: (continued)

(vi) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 31 October 2021.

(vii) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2022.

(viii) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 1 May 2022.

(ix) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 July 2022.

(x) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 1 January 2023.

(xi) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 28 February 2023.

Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees
and the achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2016,
including but not limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance
targets. The share options or any portion thereof shall be forfeited if the relevant 3-year corporate goals
cannot be achieved.

BREE (|
FRHEARITEBIRAESRME : (&)

()

BRETEHNT (&)

(v ATIERAEEBEE T =FNA=+tHLFEZEELRE
XEAMREENERARBITE 22T —Ft+tA=1—
H o

(i) AFIBEAEEBREZ 2 =F R NA=t+HIFEZEERRE
EEAMREERNEXARBTE 22T AR -

(vii) AT EAEEBEE T =F A NA=THILFEZEELFE
FEAMREENERARGTE E-F__FAA—H-

() ATIEAEEBEZ 2 =F \A=+tHILFEZEERRE
EEAMREERNEXARBTRE 2T -_—_F+tA-R -

X ATEAEEEEZE-_Z—="FNA=tHLEFEZEELFSE
EEAMREENEXARBTE 2T _=F—A—R-

x) ATIEAEEBZ "2 =F \A=+tHIFEZEELRE
EEAMRERNEEARBTR E-FT-=F_A-1+N\
H e

BEENBBXENARANKARBE_FT-—R"FA=1H
=8/ AEEEZN=F5EE R (BRETRIERREHR
B BBEREERRBBR) EHUERR - HAREXNER=F&HE
B1% - HARERAERE M RO S B -
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Share option scheme (continued)
Notes to the table of share options outstanding during the year: (continued)

(d)

(continued)

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023.
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024.

(iii) From 1 November 2016 to 2 March 2024.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 10 July 2014, 200,000 and 28,000 share options
granted to certain employees on 5 July 2010 and 2 January 2013, respectively, were exercised with exercise
prices of HK$0.503 per share and HK$0.425 per share, respectively, and exercise periods from the next
business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020 and 1 January 2023, respectively. The price of the Company’s
shares at the date of exercise was HK$0.660 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the
trading day immediately prior to the date of exercise of the options.

On 21 August 2014, 18,000 and 360,000 share options granted to an employee on 5 July 2010 and 2
December 2013, respectively, were forfeited with exercise prices of HK$0.503 per share and HK$0.570 per
share, respectively, and exercise periods from the next business day of publication of the announcement
of the audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020, and
from 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023, respectively. The price of the Company’s shares at the date
of forfeiture was HK$0.690 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of forfeiture of the options.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the exercise dates of the
share options was HK$0.653 per share. The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the
dates on which the options were granted on 2 December 2013, 2 January 2014 and 3 March 2014 were
HK$0.570 per share, HK$0.590 per share, and HK$0.710 per share, respectively.

BRESE (&)
FRAEARITEBIRAETRME : (B)

(d)

(e)

(#8)

BRETERNT

() AZE—REF+-—A—BHRE-_Z_=F+-A—H-
(i) A-F—RF+—A—BBE_Z_WF—-A—H-
(i) B-T—RF+—HA—BRE-_Z_WFEF=A_"H-

RBERRE  RZFT—WFLA+AH 23R =_FE—=FLAA
BEZZE—=F—AZHETETIEE 2200,00017 i # 228,000
MBI IEC ETTE - 1TTEE D R AEREB0.5037T LB IRE0.425
T ITESEA R ATEAEERE " T—=FAA=THIFEZ
KERGAEBAGEZRENESEXARKR 22 -_FF - AMA
—ZE-=F—A—R8 - ARBARHRITEBRZEREBFRBLE
0.6607T * AR ZERAETER XS BEB T 2 WHE -

RZE—NMFEFNAZ+—B  HRR=E—ZTFLARAK=F
—=F+=-A-RBIRT—REE 218,000 i M4 1 360,00017 B ik
B - 1TEED B AEIRE0.5037T M &% E¥0.5707T -
TEHS A ATIEAERBE-_T—=FAA=-TALFEZLE
BEREEBELAMBEENEEARKR E-T -_FF - AMNA KA
—E—NFt+—A—BRE-ZE-_=F+=-F—H - A2aBHR
BB E 2 B’ A 50.690 T - BN BRI R W B BRAT
SAEBZZ WME -

RAB MDA B EEREITE B AT 2 EF R EAEFREE
0.6537L e A AAI RN EEBREEC T —=F+=-_A=H =
T-ME—A-BR-_E-—NEZA=ZARTE BRI Z2WHED 7
AEFRREE0.5707T ~ BB ’E0.5907T & ZAZ B #0.7107T °
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Share option scheme (continued)
The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted during the year, calculated using the

trinomial option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:

BREE (|
EERA-AANREEREAGHFACREBRERNRLBHZE
& :

Number of Theoretical
options granted value of
during the year share options
FREREBREZAR BREZEREER
HK$’000
Grantees BETT EEA
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 2,500,000 629 BERLT
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 5,000,000 1,259 BEELE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 2,500,000 629 PR =2 ok £ A4
Other employees 41,160,000 10,360 Hibfg 8
51,160,000 12,877

The trinomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing options, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were the risk-free interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and
expected dividend. The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations,
due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Directors’ interests in contracts
No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

ZHEARA TN EBRRAZBREGES  EfEEARTERTREE
i ERGREGRS Rt EBREEERARAZEABRRAE
R = - BEETEFH - FRAKB RIBHE - B Z R FH
DIRBBETF2ELBEBEE  RUERRAGELR 2 BRETE
B - FHRBDREE LK EEBERRBE - SRMEBRRERMNR
e BEMERZAERMABRERLAS -

R=BARAAE . BREEEZEEENRINE TRE BT 8K
RBARKRBMENZARR PR ETBHEBERTEERSE - )
REtERANAERS -

WREEEEREETIBRR TRSEMED - 4HEE F8
DALY AT HEEREAYE -

EERNENTh 2R
AEEREEEEARRSEEMAMBRARIMEARKEXBEEKX
FEZEMSHNTERNEEEFERER -
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares

At 30 June 2014, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital and share options of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

Long positions

FERRRRORAEBRS 2 #:S

RIE-OFRA=+H ARrEREFMAEKIE6GFEZ
BEERMET  THALREARFCBEITRARBRERHEF%K
DA E#Eas

Number of Percentage of

ordinary Number of share the Company’s

Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held options held issued shares

HARR B BT

®E SORERME FREERHE FEERESE RHBE DL
Mr. LAW Ka Sing Directly beneficially owned

BRERE ERESER 1,093,091,098 - 67.19
Family interest

ENAY Fa - 6,500,000 0.40
Total

#agE 1,093,091,098 6,500,000 67.59

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, no person, other than the directors of the Company, whose
interests are also set out in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of public float
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of the Company
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the year.

B X E RAE b X [ FH R RABRIR R 2 i 35| — SR
AREEZ RN R-F-—MEAAZHE - HmATHREAT R
R RABRIRAD B - B R B T A I 53361 T AR08 2 S

RBREREZ AN
BREBEARRAINGE L AREHRRERAAE RARER - 2RA
ITRAOFEARRA D BITIRAAEHI25% o

BE BORHEAXAQRA LHES
ARRREEAMBARRAFEAREBE - HELBEE AR B EMR
EmREs -
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Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the transactions are included in note 35 to the
financial statements.

Purchase of garments

On 3 May 2012, the Group renewed a purchase agreement with a subsidiary of Laws International Group
Limited (“Laws International”), Sky Dragon International Industrial Limited which was effective from 1 July
2012 to 30 June 2015 for purchases of garments from Laws International and its subsidiaries (the “Purchase
Agreement”). Certain directors of Laws International and its subsidiaries, who have beneficial equity interests
therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. TSIN Man Kuen
Bess, a director of the Company. According to the Purchase Agreement, the annual values of the purchases
of garments from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the years ended 30 June 2013 and
30 June 2014, and the year ending 30 June 2015 will not exceed HK$292,000,000, HK$385,000,000 and
HK$504,000,000, respectively. The prices of the products are to be determined by reference to the prevailing
market prices.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in relation to the purchases of garments set out above and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available from
independent suppliers; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant Purchase Agreement and on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company have further confirmed that the values of purchases of garments
from Laws International and its subsidiaries by the Group for the year ended 30 June 2014 did not exceed
HK$385,000,000.

BEXZREBEBERS

MRAFE  REBET T TIFERERS 5 TEHD ERBIME
FEMRAUTLETRUD BUARZREELEE - ZEXFHZFHBE
N B T R P FE3S

PREE AR 1K

RIZE—Z—FRA=-R A5EHEXBERESEAR AR ([BEREE])
ZHEBARKERBREZEGRD A MAEKBER & EH B A A FEK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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Connected transactions and continuing connected transactions (continued)

Purchase of garments (continued)

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Auditors
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

TSIN Man Kuen Bess
Chairman

Hong Kong
17 September 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B ZHERE

6/

e
EY =

To the shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B AR E

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central

Hong Kong

17 September 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME

moERREMEEREE |69

Year ended 30 June 2014 &ki*%*MT/\ﬂ THILFE

Notes 2014 2013

in HK$ thousand B & —E-NEF —T—=F BT

REVENUE 5 2,548,040 2,517,167 Wi

Cost of sales (1,246,971) (1,317,732) HERK AR

GROSS PROFIT 1,301,069 1,199,435 ER

Other income 5 23,692 19,350 HllA

Selling and distribution expenses (843,103) (850,212) HE MDA

Administrative expenses (266,728) (272,533) ﬁEﬁ(EﬁSE

Other operating expenses (59,936) (49,908) Hih & &R

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 154,994 46,132 EEEKRR

Finance costs 6 = 81) BERA

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 154,994 46,051 BRBE A A

Income tax expense 10 (27,898) (23,842) FTiSB A%

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARAERAEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 11 127,096 22,209 FRRA

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hip2mBa/ (B]R)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) to be reclassified to RE&E Fﬁﬂ—ri%ﬁﬁ jgﬁ
profit or loss in subsequent periods: Z%{ﬁ%@”iﬁﬁ/ 518)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BEBIEBCEREZR

operations (2,591) 5,037

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FRARBAREER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 124,505 27,246 2HU B

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ERAREBEREBEREA
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13 EEERER
Basic HK 7.83 centsi&{li HK 1.37 cents/& 1l YN
Diluted HK 7.78 centsi&{li HK 1.37 cents/& 1l e

Details of the dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

ARAFEEE N RERBE 2 F BB B kM st 12505 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

10| zesBrns

30 June 2014 —Z—FNA=+H

Notes 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand BTz —ET-NF —T—=F BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 14 96,169 103,197 Y% - BB REE
Investment properties 15 27,382 29,150 WEME
Trademark 16 1,164 1,164 iz
Deferred tax assets 27 7,290 6,658 EEFRIEEE
Deposits paid 20 81,383 78,715 [EANE &
Total non-current assets 213,388 218,884 FnBEERE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 18 286,595 305,309 FE
Debtors 19 52,549 59,618 JE o AR 3R
Bills receivable 58,849 48,361 FEUE R
Deposits paid 20 30,363 34,575 [EENE &
Prepayments and other receivables 21 57,892 78,071 TE A 3R IE B E A E W BR 18
Derivative financial instruments 25 309 946 PTHEERT A
Pledged bank deposits 22 1,831 776 BEBRITHER
Cash and cash equivalents 22 452,477 337,807 ReERBEeFHEER
Total current assets 940,865 865,463 MBEEMLE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRE

30June 2014 —ZE—MFEA=+H

Notes 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand B3 —E-lmF —T—=F BT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 23 254,436 240,124 FERTBRIN ~ E B 2XIE K et BRIE
Bills payable 46,334 50,255 ERT =
Tax payable 28,439 39,491 JE S A 5K
Due to related companies 24 17,478 23,617 FET R & A | FIE
Derivative financial instruments 25 1,137 73 TAEcmI A
Total current liabilities 347,824 353,560 mEAaEAE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 593,041 511,903 REBEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 806,429 730,787 BRhBEEREEHAE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities 27 2,306 2,183 L IEA G
Other payables 23 1,874 - H fth fE T 018
Total non-current liabilities 4,180 2,183 FERBBERE
Net assets 802,249 728,604 BEFE
EQUITY R
Issued capital 28 162,693 162,078 BEITIRA
Reserves 30 639,556 566,526 fi 1
Total equity 802,249 728,604 EmiEE

MAK Tak Cheong Edmund &g
Director &%

CHAN Cheuk Him Paul & £ 5
Director £%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
12| pomnensk

Year ended 30 June 2014 #HE-ZT—WMFA=1THIFE

Share Share Capital Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus revaluation fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity

in HK$ thousand BT i) BRE ERGFE BARER BE SNER B REES
BT (s &S R ER it GEL)) (Bt Eb) EfhRE & (B 5Ec) REEA RREE
At 1 July 2013
RZE—=F+tA—H 162,078 18,154 17,250 (3,.292) 90,258 9,395 21,569 1,810 411,382 728,604
Profit for the year
REZHM - - - - - - - - 127,09 127,096
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
REFEMEEES :

Exchange differences on translation

of foreign operations

BEBIMNBrERER - - - - - - (2,591) - - (2,591)
Total comprehensive income for the year
FRAEERGERE - - - - - - (2,591) - 127,096 124,505
Final 2013 dividend declared
BEER-_ZE—=FRBKE 12 - - - - - - - - (9,725)  (9,725)
Special final 2013 dividend declared
BEER-ZE—=FFHIRAKRE 12 - - - - - - - - (9.725)  (9,725)
Interim 2014 dividend
—E-MEHRHRE 12 - - - - - - - - (37.343) (37,343)
Exercise of share options
1TIEBAE 28 615 3,452 (1,395) - - - - - - 2,672
Equity-settled share option arrangements
EneEBRELY 29 - - 3,261 - - - - - - 3,261
At 30 June 2014
RZE—MFA=+H 162,693 21,606 19,116" (3,292) 90,258" 9,395 18,978" 1,810° 481,685 802,249
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

St TEES

73

Year ended 30 June 2014 HE—Z—WFSA=+HILFE
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
Issued premium option reserve surplus  revaluation fluctuation funds Retained Total
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) profits equity
in HK$ thousand BR1T B An BB BARRE NG BE SN B REES
BETT BT AR i BRR i GEL)) (PBt5Eh) BhFE & B RER & F EnEE
At 1 July 2012
RZEBE——F+A—H 162,018 17,937 13,915 (4,987) 90,258 9,395 17,271 1,810 418,097 725,714
Profit for the year
RE 5 R - - - - - - - - 22,209 22,209
Other comprehensive income for the year:
REFAEMEE WL :
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations
MEBIEBERZR - - - - - - 5,037 - - 5,037
Total comprehensive income for the year
FRAREKZEHE - - - - - - 5,037 - 22,209 27,246
Release of reserves upon
deregistration of a subsidiary
B 7 70 P 8 2 R 5 R A - - - 1,695 - - (739) - (1,695) (739)
Interim 2013 dividend
—E-=FhHRE 12 - - - - - - - - (10211)  (10,211)
Special interim 2013 dividend
“Z-=FRHRHRE 12 - - - - - - - - (17,018)  (17,018)
Exercise of share options
1T A 28 60 217 (78) - - - - - - 199
Equity-settled share option arrangements
BaitEERERH - - 3,413 - - - - - - 3,413
At 30 June 2013
RZE—=%,HA=+H 162,078 18,154* 17,250* (3,292)*  90,258* 9,395*  21,569* 1,810*  411,382** 728,604

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 ¥igEBIFR £BER AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAREBDEE

Year ended 30 June 2014 HE-ZT—WWFA=THIFE

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$639,556,000 (2013: HK$566,526,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

#  The retained profits comprised the proposed final dividend of HK$51,574,000 (2013: HK$9,725,000) and proposed
special final dividend of HK$25,380,000 (2013: HK$9,725,000) for the year ended 30 June 2014.

Notes:

(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired

pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993.

() In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in mainland China, a portion of the profit of a subsidiary in
mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

I EREERERSINEGREMBERARAZERE EEB1639,556,0007T (=
T — =4 : #B#566,526,0007T) °

REBEANBEEBEE_T-NENAZTALFEZRERGEREBE
51,574,0007C (=& — = £ : & #9,725,0007T) & #t R 45 B K HA % 88 1
25,380,0007T (=& — =4 : #%9,725,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

sABeTER| /D

Year ended 30 June 2014 HEZT—MFA=1+HIFE
Notes 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand B & —Z-MmF —E—= BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXRCHERE
Profit before tax 154,994 46,051 BR A5 A& A
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs 6 = 81 BMEMKAR
Interest income 5 (6,085) (3,425) FEWA
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories 7 (29,641) 13,298 TERE,/ (BERR)
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, HE/MIEYE - BE RSB
plant and equipment 7 1,900 4,905 HAZER
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment 7 4,512 5,000 ME - BERZEBER ZRE
Fair value losses, net on derivative financial TEeMI A N T EFEE
instruments — transactions not qualifying as hedges 7 4,845 1,340 —PNREEHHREBNRH
Fair value gain on a structured deposit 7 - (99) ERETRZ AT ERE
Depreciation 7 63,665 70,768 e
Equity-settled share option expense 7 3,261 3,413 BaAERERERS
Impairment of debtors 7 1,630 1,793 & W BR FURL (B
199,081 143,125
Decrease in inventories 45,273 49,667 FERD
Decrease in debtors 4,642 6,416 FENBR BB
Increase in bills receivable (10,488) (16,509) FEH R IRIE N
Decrease in deposits paid 893 2,775 BffEeRD
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and other receivables 19,535 (17,920) TATRRIE R E A FE U BRIER > (32 0n)
Increase in trade creditors, other payables and accruals 31 11,463 4,328 JE T BR AR~ ELth B A< FUIR J e 5T AR TEE A
Increase/(decrease) in bills payable (3,921) 15,217 FERZE &M, (RD)
Movements in balances with related companies (6,139) 13,191 HEENRFRIEBE
Decrease in derivative financial instruments (3,144) (2,112) TESBRT AR
Decrease in provision = (1,799) BRERD
Cash generated from operations 257,195 196,379 HEEBMECRE
Interest paid - (81) B FE
Hong Kong profits tax paid (35,964) (37,739) ENAEENEH
Overseas taxes paid (3,495) (4,135) BREsMEIE
Net cash flows from operating activities 217,736 154,424 BEEBIMEREREFHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
16| zenenax

Year ended 30 June 2014 HE—Z—WNFENA=+HILFE

Notes 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand B & —E-NF —E—= BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH<RERE
Interest received 6,085 3,425 BEYHE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 31 (52,990) (59,684) BEWE  BERZHBRAR
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant HEWE  BERZEEE
and equipment 56 1,026 A% 308
Decrease in a structured deposit - 15,878 i |§Tmﬂ9
Increase in pledged bank deposit with original maturity BERERTIHEBB=HEAZ
of more than three months when acquired (778) = BEARITHERIEM
Net cash flows used in investing activities (47,627) (39,355) BREEB ERSREFE
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZBH2RHERE
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of HITEBREMEITRG 2
share options 28(b) 2,672 199 FTiS 3R
Dividends paid (56,793) (27.229) ERBRE
Repayment of bank loans - (25,295) EERBITER
Net cash flows used in financing activities (54,121) (52,325) BB TS RS RERH
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 115,988 62,744 RERFESEEEE 2FEM
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 338,583 273,531 FozHekBe MTEIE 5]
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (1,041) 2,308 INERBREBE B FE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 453,530 338,583 FRZBSRESEEER
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRBESEHEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS RO
Cash and bank balances 22 264,869 233,049 Be RIBITE
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity REERE E'JHH BAR=@AZ
of less than three months when acquired 22 187,608 104,758 EEFBITER
Pledged bank deposit with original maturity NERREINHELH=EAZ
of less than three months when acquired 22 1,053 776 BIEBRITER
453,530 338,583
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR &

30June 2014 —ZE—MFEA=+H

Notes 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand B3 —E-lmF —T—=F BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 17 143,162 143,162 RB AR ZIRE
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries 17 295,146 232,677 JFE UK BT /B8 1~ B 3R IE
Prepayments 21 170 169 TR IR
Cash and cash equivalents 22 567 355 ReRkBEEEER
Total current assets 295,883 233,201 mENEEAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals 23 941 1,604 B FE A 3R I8 K FE AT BRIE
Tax payable 119 - JE R 5 7K
Total current liabilities 1,060 1,604 mEaEEE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 294,823 231,597 RBEEZFE
Net assets 437,985 374,759 BEFE
EQUITY =
Issued capital 28 162,693 162,078 BEITIRA
Reserves 30 275,292 212,681 s
Total equity 437,985 374,759 - ]

MAK Tak Cheong Edmund &g
Director %

CHAN Cheuk Him Paul [ £ 5
Director £%F

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 ¥ #E BIfR &£ B

BRAA



78

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eupy R R

30 June 2014 —ZE—MFA=+H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 1. AEEHR
Bossini International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered EMERREBEERARNINRERETMAZLZERAR - AQF
office of the Company is located at Canon'’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda. Its shares 2 s S EE A7 Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Bermuda ° AR BIRMDEBBHERFABERAE (BT £ -
During the year, the Group was principally engaged in investment holding and the retailing, distribution REBRAFEXTEREREERIKKETE  DHIBBEEL -
and wholesaling of garments.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 fRBLE %

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2014. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described in the accounting policy
for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

ZEPBHRDZBELGHNAG ((EEEFMAG )BT
AU BEREL ((EEMBERER) (BRMBEREVBERE
Al EASER((HFBG L] k) BEEERMAZE
ARARBFEABMGIIZBEREMRE - WIIRBELRANER
ERE METESRT AURFEAERIN - ZFMBREAET
(DB & E - BRERIZIAS - REBEDNEEEE T THE -

REREEE

HEMBRREBFARALENBEAR (BB AEEDHE_F
—HENA=ZTHLEFEZHHRE - WBAR M BWMKRTIRE
ARRIER 2 BERRRA - R S HRER - TAAEFEZ
HESHBRCHBELRABRUMEZER 2 - MBARREAD 5
BAKBEERGEH# . BREAFE  EE LMEFERIEZAR
1o

EakEt2EKE 2 S EAXSNEBRAREG QR ZEARA
NOFfERtEss - AR R SR PO R ESEHRRAR - IEAH
AEBERERARAZRZZEERNBLARIMEERARE - #a -
KA AXEREREBGTNES AR 2BEH -

HEENRBERBER TXMBRARZ @t BRI =IRZERREZ —
BRZEHREL  AEEGEMFHEISTENRIRET - —F
MEBAR R EEREEZEHMI ARREIZENE  RERERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R YRR

30June 2014 —ZE—MFEA=+H

79

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

HKAS 36 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 36 — Impairment of Assets — Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (early adopted)

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards — Government Loans

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 —

HKFRS 12 Amendments Transition Guidance

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in June 2012

2009 - 2011 Cycle
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 13, amendments to HKAS
36, HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12, and certain amendments included in Annual Improvements 2009-
2011 Cycle, the adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit which is not impaired. In addition, the amendments
require the disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-generating units for which
an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the reporting period, and expand the
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value measurement for these assets or units if their
recoverable amounts are based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments are effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application
permitted, provided HKFRS 13 is also applied. The Group has early adopted the amendments in these
financial statements. The amendments have had no impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements and addresses the issues in HK(SIC)-Int
12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a single control model used for determining
which entities are consolidated. To meet the definition of control in HKFRS 10, an investor must
have (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed the accounting policy with respect
to determining which investees are controlled by the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)
The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the consolidation conclusions of the Group in
respect of its involvement with investees as at 1 July 2013.

The HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Amendments clarify the transition guidance in HKFRS 10 and
provide further relief from full retrospective application of these standards, limiting the requirement to
provide adjusted comparative information to only the preceding comparative period. The amendments
clarify that retrospective adjustments are only required if the consolidation conclusion as to which
entities are controlled by the Group is different between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at
the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is applied for the first time.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances in
which the Group is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how fair value should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied
prospectively and the adoption has had no material impact on the Group's fair value measurements.
As a result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies for measuring fair value have been amended.
Additional disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements of financial instruments
are included in note 37 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
(e) Annual Improvements 2009 — 2011 Cycle issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of
standards. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of
the amendments may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these amendments have had a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the key amendments most applicable to the Group
are as follows:

— HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to contain a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period must be presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or makes reclassifications, and that change has a
material effect on the statement of financial position. However, the related notes to the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period are not required to be
presented.

—  HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions
to equity holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment
removes existing income tax requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply the
requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising from distributions to equity holder.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendments

HKAS 19 Amendments
HKAS 32 Amendments
HKAS 39 Amendments
HKFRS 9

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and

HKFRS 9 Amendments

HKAS 27 (2011), HKFRS 10 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010 -2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011 -2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment and
HKAS 38 — Intangible Assets — Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation *

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Employee Benefits — Defined
Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 2

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting

Financial Instruments ©

Hedge Accounting and amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9 ©

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011), HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12
— Investment Entities '

Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements — Accounting for
Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations *

Requlatory Deferral Accounts 3

Revenue from Contracts with Customers °

Levies'

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in January 2014 2

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in January 2014 2

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements for a period beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and not applicable

to the Group

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
& No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 23 CEMEMKRENM2E BN EERER (E&)

(continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity
shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis
of both the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made to
the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option (“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is
attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk
in OCl would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts which have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9 the requirements related to hedge accounting and made
some related changes to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 which include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting. The amendments to HKFRS 9 relax the requirements
for assessing hedge effectiveness which result in more risk management strategies being eligible for hedge
accounting. The amendments also allow greater flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on
using purchased options and non-derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments. In addition, the
amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity to apply only the improved accounting for own credit risk-related
fair value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the other HKFRS
9 requirements at the same time.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:
(continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The previous mandatory effective date
of HKFRS 9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013 and a mandatory effective date will be
determined after the entire replacement of HKAS 39 is completed. However, the standard is available
for application now. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases, when the final
standard including all phases is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity. Investment entities
are required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9
rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011).
The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements for investment entities. The
Group expects that these amendments will not have any impact on the Group as the Company is not an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set off”
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 July 2014.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS
39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred,
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill, if any, as
at 30 June. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principle
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principle or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESTBERHME (&)
Related parties BEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIERT EAALBEAREB ZBEAL
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person @ BHEAR—BALHBRALZBAERTBIREKRE @ MZAL
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () PRSI ERERIAER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (iy SREBEEATE S : K
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group; (i) RAEESAAEEFRETNFEETEAENHEP—EKE
or "
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (b) ZALTREBMAS NIMEE—IBEYE:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEBEREXAEEBR —SBEZHKERN
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow iy, —HAEBES —BEEMNBEATNGIELE(XE—F
subsidiary of the other entity); ZBAR] - WEBARKRRKBAR)
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party; (i) ZERERNEEERERAE=26FE1E:
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity; vy —EEBARE="BERZEELERS—BERBRE=ZERY
il /NI
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or (v ZEBAAKEY—FRERKEFHE L EBRESORE
an entity related to the Group; ) 0 5% ) B B 4R R 5T
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and (vi) ZEEZQ@HEANALTESISEERZES &
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key vii) R@GFTRIATHEREERFENNEZEE (HZE

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). BEAR)FEEBASRNEF— %}ﬁi 8o
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is realised and
transferred directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, when the corresponding asset is used by the
Group. The amount realised is the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover an impairment loss, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Land and buildings 2% to 5% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

9% to 25%
15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles 15% to 33%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least
at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. The Group has adopted the cost model under HKAS
40 to account for its investment properties and such properties are stated at cost less depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rate used for this purpose is 3%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in profit or loss
in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
and loans and receivables, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include
any interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H)
Investments and other financial assets RENHMESRMEE
Initial recognition and measurement R R E
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and
in other operating expenses for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

— the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

— the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account and
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade creditors, bills and other payables, certain accruals, amounts
due to related companies and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBEME (H)
Financial liabilities (continued) ERMBE(E)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and includes all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present value at
the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or
loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

— when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

— in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

— when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

— inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 24 TESHBRBE (&)
Government grants B B
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant find T & B2 T E AN 5 [ G W B w8 G B i <r A B A I 1 - BB 48
will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense MEREFEEIATFETNRER - WMEME—ERXIERE# - 8%
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended HA SR RREEREIERE KRS ER S SRR ARA -

to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition U % R

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the s g R A EES RGBS WA AT A ER - TR T EE

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases: T LARERR ¢

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to (@ NEVHEEMSZRA EEVERREBEOREEEDE
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually TER MASEGEFESENEGEMEBCERE - THE
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold; EHEVERERERE 2 HER

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that (by FIEWA  MEABERNEXRSE  NEBANEXESmM T A A
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument FHIREHE (WER) NERTRMAFT RARATENREES
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; BEE 2 BREFE

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; (0 MW A + RIELHRNIZERE A ZEE#ER

(d) royalty income, on a time proportion basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant (d) BHE  REEBEHEEERNDILTRE L FI A ERER

agreements; and

(e) claims received, when the right to receive the payment has been established. (e) BWREFIA - B UCHUIA B M| e 7 By FERR o

Dividends BRE

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained profits within the EERBRE CRBGR Tbﬁf\ﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm R BIED
equity section of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders in RzRBEN BEHERRARRERGHEAIL - ERFREE
a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are B A REIRE - BIEIEEEBRABARK -

recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’s memorandum,
articles of association and bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair values are determined using
appropriate option pricing models, further details of which are given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and
any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting
period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the ""ORSO Scheme”), for all of its employees in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,250 per employee before 31 May 2014 and HK$1,500 per employee starting from 1
June 2014, are made by each of the employer and the employees. The employer contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group'’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO Scheme.
The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each employee
at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in
the Group's employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.

The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme, which is a
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The Group operates two pension schemes in Taiwan under the Labour Standards Law (the “’Old Scheme”)
and under the Labour Pension Act which became effective on 1 July 2005 (the “"New Scheme”). Under the
Old Scheme, the Taiwan Branch of one of the Company’s subsidiaries makes regular contributions to the
Old Scheme to meet its employees’ retirement and termination benefits. Currently, the contributions have
been approved to be made at 2% of the employees’ total salaries. The fund is administered by a committee
and is deposited in the committee’s name with a government approved financial institution, Bank of
Taiwan, which acts as the trustee. Under the New Scheme, the Taiwan Branch and a Taiwan subsidiary
contribute each month 6% of the salaries of the employees who choose to participate in the New Scheme,
and deposit these amounts into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interests and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

24 TR BERBE (F)

EEEF (&)

RIKkEE 2 (&)

AEER BB RRIBSBHEEL ([EFE)) KR _FTREFLA
—HAEMZ S TRKE GG (THEHE]) KEMBERAKRBHE S - 1R
BREE  ARRAMBRRZEENRRERREBIMHK  BE
RERERARBEREN - B CRIEZHTERREBATH
22% ZEeH—HAEESEE  WUZZESELEFHA—MH
ERESERAZBNRAIMBEHESERTT - REHNTE 58
DRARBENBRARAEGAREENFE 2EBEREREHM 6%
HHK - AFERRETREEZEARKESA -

EE KA
EERARELNMAEERRAAMAT - EERAREERMEE
BEMBEZMBREMKA -

RERASEEER

REARSRBRRME BeRBLSEERNERS  THF
RREE AN EREE (THSERACAKEZ RS - MAE
RREESE  ARABZHMERE  —RHEAZEAR) - &
SOENRERTEZHTELRMEALERSER Y THHH -

RPBMARTE - RekReFERBBRASRBITFER(E
EEREFF) AREERURS NERERFIZEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 F#&



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eipy R R

30June 2014 —ZE—NFEXA=1+H

107

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loyalty programme
The Group operates loyalty programmes which allow customers to accumulate points when they purchase
products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points being equal to their fair value. Fair value is determined by applying
statistical techniques.

The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the points are redeemed.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are translated into Hong Kong dollar
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group'’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the aged analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of each reporting period,
and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for
sale. The assessment of the provision amount required involves management judgements and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such differences
will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision charge/write-back of provision
in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition, physical counts on all inventories are
carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether provision needs to be made in respect of
any obsolete inventories identified. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of each reporting
period and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management reassesses the
estimation at the end of each reporting period. The Group is satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial statements. The carrying amount
of the Group's inventories as at 30 June 2014 was HK$286,595,000 (2013: HK$305,309,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use and fair value less cost to sell of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The fair value less cost to sell
is estimated based on current prices in an active market and by reference to external valuation reports.
The carrying amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment and investment properties as at 30
June 2014 were HK$96,169,000 (2013: HK$103,197,000) and HK$27,382,000 (2013: HK$29,150,000),
respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of
unrecognised tax losses as at 30 June 2014 was HK$461,648,000 (2013: HK$473,791,000). Further details
are contained in note 27 to the financial statements.

Impairment of debtors and other receivables

The Group conducts impairment reviews of financial assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with the relevant accounting
standards. Determining whether an asset is impaired requires an estimation of the future cash flows and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance and its future
results would be affected. As at 30 June 2014, provisions for impairment of debtors of HK$2,058,000
(2013: HK$2,045,000) were made and the carrying amount of debtors was HK$52,549,000 (2013:
HK$59,618,000). As at 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of other receivables was HK$43,369,000
(2013: HK$40,210,000).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Share option valuation

The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the values of the share options were the risk-free
interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and expected dividend. The expected life of the
options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. The measurement dates
used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the trinomial model are subject to certain fundamental
limitations, due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the
expected future performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units that offer products to customers
located in different geographical areas and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Hong Kong
(b) Mainland China
(c) Taiwan
(d) Singapore

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income and finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.
Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Group
Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and expenditure information
for the Group’s geographical segments for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013.

4. RETREHN (F)

S
35

TREVNAKRBERE_ZT-OFR_T—=FAA=THLFER
sz WE R (BB RETEE AERFAXEH-

Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore Consolidated
58 EPN =) 303 e

in HK$ thousand 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
BETT —E-NF —T-=F —E-NF —T—= —E-NF —F—= —E-NF —F—= —E-NF —F—=
Segment revenue:
pak 1

Sales to external customers

SHE THNEEE 1,757,065 1,625,757 347,608 388,865 212,454 246,368 230,913 256,177 2,548,040 2,517,167

Other income

H AU A 13,546 11,742 1,613 2,701 1,062 797 1,386 685 17,607 15,925
Total
1t 1,770,611 1,637,499 349,221 391,566 213,516 247,165 232,299 256,862 2,565,647 2,533,092
Segment results
DEEE 198,951 210,034 (17,379) (117,351) (13,890) (49,996) (18,773) 20 148,909 42,707
Interest income
FEHA 6,085 3,425
Profit from operating activities
NSl 154,994 46,132
Finance costs
B & AR = 81
Profit before tax
PR T AR A 154,994 46,051
Income tax expense
FTiE R X (27,898) (23,842)
Profit for the year
F R Al 127,096 22,209

The revenue information above is based on the location in which the sales originated.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESFER (F)
Geographical segments (continued) 35 5 8 ()

Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore Consolidated

b R KB =) | 3R )

in HK$ thousand 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
BEFT —E-mEF —T—=fF —E-mF —T—=F —E-mF —Z—=F —E-mF —E—=F —E-mEF —T—=fF
Segment assets
DEEE 714,393 621,866 280,994 285,290 55,090 78,346 96,486 92,187 1,146,963 1,077,689

Unallocated assets
ADEEE 7,290 6,658

Total assets
BEE 1,154,253 1,084,347

Segment liabilities
HHEAEE 258,662 233,556 38,339 49,511 16,826 21,542 7,432 9,460 321,259 314,069

Unallocated liabilities

KO EE 30,745 41,674
Total liabilities
waE 352,004 355,743
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REDWER (EF)
Geographical segments (continued) 35 5 ()
Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore Consolidated
&8 B K fE = 3 3R )

in HK$ thousand 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
BT —E-NE —T-=F —E-NFE —T-=F —E-NF —T—=F —E-NF —T-=F —E-MF —T-=F
Other segment information:
Hitp BER

Capital expenditure*

B 43,205 41,780 1,360 9,376 2,839 4,190 11,735 4,338 59,139 59,684

Depreciation

e 48,514 40,850 5,409 12,227 2,735 12,314 7,007 5,377 63,665 70,768

Impairment of items of

property, plant and

equipment
ME - BEREE

HB ZRE - - - = - 5,000 4,512 = 4,512 5,000
Loss/(gain) on disposal/

write-off of items of

property, plant and

equipment
HE/MEE

85 B AR A TE B

bl it - VAU € 299 244 134 334 (8) 3,889 1,475 438 1,900 4,905
Provision/(write-back of

provision) for inventories

%,/ (B ERE) 4,121 1,743 (32,118) 11,369 (3,816) 1,267 2,172 (1,081) (29,641) 13,298
Impawment of debtors
FEW AR R 2 BB - 11 1,630 1,782 - = - = 1,630 1,793
Non-current assets**
FmBEE* 110,813 114,002 4,740 8,509 3,023 3,703 6,139 7,297 124,715 133,511
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment. * BARXBEABYE  BEREE-
** The non-current asset information above is based on the location of assets and excludes deferred tax assets and > P BRFRBEECERDREBEEEMTHAE  TREBRERE
the non-current portion of deposits paid. BERBMRE 2 IERNEIHMH
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$318,628,000 (2013: HK$305,964,000) was derived from sales by the Hong

Kong segment to a single customer.

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
Group

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods

sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as follows:

4,

ER—BEXEREFZ2EH
U5 #)78%5318,628,0007T (=T — =4 : #¥305,964,0007T) Ji 2K
BEBERN—ZE—RFZHE -

3 B EL A A
%8

Wz REARELZ BEH) HHRE R RERTNE 2 & EBRY
BAE

Yoz K A A Z DA a0T

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-MmE —T—=F BT
Revenue: as
Retailing and distribution of garments 2,548,040 2,517,167 RIKEE kD
Other income: EMUA -
Interest income 6,085 3,425 FEUA
Claims received 213 1,443 B RERIEAE
Royalty income 4,159 4,615 BERNBRA
Gross rental income 5,935 4,783 He W AT
Others 7,300 5,084 HAh
23,692 19,350
2,571,732 2,536,517
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6. FINANCE COSTS ELE= 928
Group £8
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB AR
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZE-NF -F—= BT T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable BARAFRNBHEECRTERREY
within five years = 81 pll=A
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A1 3 A
Group &5
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBBRBAHEN DG, (GEA) TFER
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZE-NF —ET—=F BET T
Cost of sales: SHE R
Cost of inventories sold 1,276,612 1,304,434 EHFEEZRAK
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories (29,641) 13,298 FERE, (BERR)
1,246,971 1,317,732
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration — note 8): BEIRAK(BEESEMNE —WES) :
Salaries and wages 366,177 370,638 HeRIA&
Equity-settled share option expense 3,261 3,413 o 45 B AR B <2
Pension scheme contributions 25,704 31,878 RS EIHRK
Less: Forfeited contributions - (120) R MR R
Net pension scheme contributions (note a) 25,704 31,758 RN ETEF K (FiiEa)
395,142 405,809
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBEADEF (48)
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued) AEEZBRBEINEFENR (GTA) THIEE « (8)
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —Z-mF —E—=F BB T
Depreciation (notes 14 and 15) 63,665 70,768 & (faE145%15)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases: KERETHREBEER
Land and buildings (note e) 387,547 404,553 T T (K 5Ee)
Contingent rents of retail shops (note f) 41,321 47,625 TEER AR S (FFFED
Plant and machinery 764 904 e M B
429,632 453,082
Auditors’ remuneration 3,438 3,219 ZEETEN &
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, HEMEME  BERBEER
plant and equipment 1,900 4,905 ZEE
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment (note d) 4,512 5,000 YE - BB KREEE 2 RE (BiEd)
Impairment of debtors (note 19) 1,630 1,793 JEUR BR R A (B 5E19)
Foreign exchange differences, net 5,096 (4,160) HNEE R M ERE - FHE
Net rental income (note c) (5,906) (4,306) & WA FEE (M)
Rental income on investment properties with no direct TREFAEELER I CREME
operating expenses (note c) (5,905) (4,558) AL WA (FzEc)
Fair value gain on a structured deposit - (99) HEHEMFHR A TFERE
Fair value losses, net on derivative financial instruments PESRIAZATEFER
— transactions not qualifying as hedges (note b) 4,845 1,340 —THEEREREFNRS (Mstb)
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBiAIER ()
Notes: M T
(@) As at 30 June 2014, forfeited contributions available to the Group to reduce its contributions to the ORSO Scheme (@ RZZE—MEFANA=1+8 AEETAERERERERKGSIHR
in future years amounted to HK$52,000 (2013: HK$52,000). 28 MR RSB 552,000 (ZF — =4 : #B#552,0007T) °
(b) The fair value losses, net on derivative financial instruments — transactions not qualifying as hedges are included in b) TTEERMIAZATEFEE-THEERYPEINRFHEBIEL
“other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ReBnkHM2ERERZ [HMEER<] -
income.
() Rental income on investment properties is included in net rental income. (0 BREVHEHSWAEBELEBESUWAFEEE -
(d) Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment is included in “other operating expenses” on the face of (d) % BELRRXEFEEBZRAECEEEEAEBEakAMEEKERZ
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. [Hih B -
(e) The minimum lease payments of land and buildings under operating leases include management fee of a shop. (6) MEMETHHMEEFCHEBENZTRE—MEH2ERER -
(f)  Commissions to department stores are not included. ) TBREBERAAME -
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EXM<E
Group £8
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 78 of Schedule 11 BIE EMARA RF2Q2EFERNTEHIE7EM TI11BERHE 2R
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), is as follows: FEEEMEOT :
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ET-lmF —=—= BT T
Executive directors: HITESE
Fees - - e
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,734 6,679 e R EEYRE
Performance related bonuses 2,419 528 AR IRAERE 2 TEAL
Equity-settled share option expense 1,557 1,940 BnEEERERS
Pension scheme contributions 45 45 RIREETEIHEK
10,755 9,192
Independent non-executive directors: BUEITES
Fees 666 647 e
11,421 9,839
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
The total remuneration included performance bonuses payable to the executive directors of HK$2,419,000
(2013: HK$528,000).

Share options were granted to the directors in respect of their services to the Group under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such share options, which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as follows:

8. EEM< (&)

e BEpIERMNNITEE 2 EBIEAE 2,419,000 (ZFE—=
£ B¥528,0007T) ©

ARARMEEAAEERERE M ARERLAR B BIESET
R - FHIBEEN M BRI 29 - ARABRE Y ATFETIRE
HAHETE  YERRBREERRER - RAFEF AMBHRK
ZEREAALLEZHe 2 KER -

(a) BYFHITES
RENEXN FBEILIIFATES ZEESWT

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZE-NF —E—=%F BT
Ms. LEUNG Mei Han 256 249 REMEZ T
Prof. SIN Yat Ming 205 199 A=EEE €
Mr. LEE Man Chun Raymond 205 199 EEEAE
666 647

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year
(2013: Nil). None of the independent non-executive directors waived remuneration during the year
and the prior year.

FRAAEBRNBYIFRTEST 2 EMMES (T —=F: &) -
FARREF  BEBLIRTESFHEMNS -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM<E (&)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITESE
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions  remuneration
W 2B HRFEE BELEH Bike
in HK$ thousand we REYW S ZIEAL BRENX STEIER [Tl BETT
2014 —E-NE
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess - 1,495 518 330 15 2,358 BERTT
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund - 3,549 1,544 960 15 6,068 BEELE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul - 1,690 357 267 15 2,329 BREFLE
- 6,734 2,419 1,557 45 10,755
2013 —E-=
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess = 1,478 122 321 15 1,936 BEBTT
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund = 3,531 269 1,337 15 5,152 EEELE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul = 1,670 137 282 15 2,104 PR 5T
- 6,679 528 1,940 45 9,192
There was no arrangement under which an executive director waived or agreed to waive any FARNEF @ WENTESHEXRERETMNE 2 ZHE -

remuneration during the year and the prior year.
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9.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Group
The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2013: three) directors, details of whose

remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2013: two),
highest paid employees who are not directors of the Company, are as follows:

TEREHES

L]

FRATEZBRFEERE=-2(ZT—=F : =R)EZ ' LMl
BERHIN EXHES - HBEME (ZT—=F : MB) AR A&KR
FHREERERBZMEFBEMOT

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-ME —T—= BT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,457 4,466 e EREBYIRE
Performance related bonuses 492 167 BRIV 2 B4
Equity-settled share option expense 213 263 B EERERS
Pension scheme contributions 31 30 RIS ETEIH K
5,193 4,926

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands

MeNFTIBEZE=FHFEEREHBNT

is as follows:
Number of employees ESZH
2014 2013
—B-0F —E-=F
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1 75 #2,000,001 7T £ 78 #2,500,0007T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 1 712,500,001 7T 2 4 #3,000,0007T
2 2
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Group

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

10. FREBLBA X
L]
EFRNGRERFARE BRI A5 ERBEN AR X 16.5% (=
T—=F :16.5%) ITRER - EEMMEMSRRTUEN 2 HIR -
TRBEASEEBLELERERE RERRZBRITHENE

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ET-lmF —=—= BT T
Current — Hong Kong BIER— &%
Charge for the year 25,535 27,296 FAXH
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years 31 (215) BEFERETT (BEEE)
Current — Elsewhere RVER — H fth ith (=
Charge for the year 4,695 3,681 FRXH
Overprovision in prior years (1,854) (3,644) BT FERERE
Deferred (note 27) (509) (3,276) EAE (MH5E27)
Total tax charge for the year 27,898 23,842 FARIE HAHE
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rate for the
countries/jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to
the effective tax rate, are as follows:

10. FRG LRI ()

BEAARARERNBOWBRARMEREK,RUERERE 2 EEHR X
SAEBERRBRBINETR, (BR) 2 HEBERX/ (ER) BRER
MERFEZBIRFAXEE  ARERRE (BDAERE) BEREHRE
ZHERMT

1.

2014 2013

in HK$ thousand “E-mEF % —Z-=% % BT
Profit before tax 154,994 46,051 R 250 31 4
Tax at the statutory tax rate 23,816 15.3 2,161) @.7) REEREFE R
Adjustments in respect of current BT E

tax of previous periods (1,823) (1.2) (3,859) (8.4) EH AR
Income not subject to tax (13,149) (8.5 (2,280) 4.9 BRI 2 WA
Expenses not deductible for tax 7,853 5.1 5,728 12.4 AAMERIBEIR 2 F X
Unrecognised tax losses and temporary differences 13,006 8.4 27,382 59.5 AEAREEERGREE5E
Tax losses utilised from previous periods (2,783) (1.8) (139) (03) BABHERBEHRESR
Others 978 0.7 (829) (1.8) ity
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate 27,898 18.0 23,842 51.8 BASEERTRFE 2 HE T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014 includes
a profit of HK$39,771,000 (2013: HK$37,178,000), which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.

1.

KATEE ABRMLEERZF
HE-_Z-—NFNA=ZTHLEFEZARREE ABGGEEHNE
¥ 5% A7 #639,771,0000T (— T — =4 : 5%37,178,0007T) * W E
RBERRGMIEREKA -
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-mF —E—=F BT T
Interim — HK2.30 cents (2013: HK0.63 cent) T H - R EBR2. 30 (ZT—=% : 0.637% ()
per ordinary share 37,343 10,211
Special interim — Nil (2013: HK1.05 cents) BFRFH-&E(ZT— =4 §RTBR1.055W)
per ordinary share - 17,018
Proposed final — HK3.17 cents (2013: HK0.60 cent) BRRP-SFHREBEBIA7BW(ZZE—=F : 0.60/811)
per ordinary share 51,574 9,725
Proposed special final — HK1.56 cents (2013: HK0.60 cent) BRI R A — B AR @R 5681
per ordinary share 25,380 9,725 — =4 : 0.6081L)
114,297 46,679

13.

The proposed final dividends are not reflected as dividends payable as of 30 June 2014, but will be
recorded as distribution of retained earnings for the year ended 30 June 2014. The proposed final dividend
of HK$51,574,000 and the proposed special final dividend of HK$25,380,000 for the year are calculated
based on 1,626,929,394 shares of the Company in issue and are subject to the approval of the Company's
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$127,096,000 (2013: HK$22,209,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,622,894,786 (2013: 1,620,356,928) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$127,096,000 (2013: HK$22,209,000). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue of 1,622,894,786 (2013: 1,620,356,928)
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 10,872,787 (2013: 2,898,602) assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

13.

BRARBARBLIIER —E—HFNA=+HAZENERE - i
CHRBEE_FT—HUFANAZTALFEZREENDIR - FAK

R R BAR% BB #51,574,0007T M K 55 51 K B A% B8 25,380,000
TR AN T BTN 1,626,929,394/% 5T & - W B FEE I
RBFERE FEARQRMELAE -

ARAREERSRAEARGERER

BRERBF TIREARRDBEE A B S AEFE 127,096,000
TL(ZE—=%F: ;‘%%ﬁzz 209,0007T) K& F A E 1T % @Ak hn g 19
#01,622,894,786/% (—=ZT — =% : 1,620,356,928/% ) 5T & -

TGREEE RN TIREA R THEE AERF NEFE%127,096,0007T
(ZZT—=4%: #%22,209,0007T) 1 & ;Hr::ﬁmﬂz - 378 % 04 T
HEE BARTESREARRN 2 FAEETEBR1,622,894,786
(=T —=%:1,620,356,928%%) * RBRBWRIEBHKITHE L ER
FTEEEEE TRl AT BRMZTRBEITZ L BERINETFEY
£010,872,787/% (= F — =4 : 2,898,602/%) -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % - BERXE
Group 5
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor

buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HE RER B £ER

in HK$ thousand T RIEF L/ES:304 s WAERE RE @E BT

2014 —=—m&

At 30 June 2013 and RZZE—=F"HA=1tBRk
at 1 July 2013: —E—=FtH—H8:
Cost 20,500 289,214 8 184,243 2,433 496,398 X ANME
Accumulated depreciation ZRTERRE

and impairment (7,901) (233,342) (8) (150,835) (1,115) (393,201)
Net carrying amount 12,599 55,872 - 33,408 1,318 103,197 REFEE

At 1 July 2013, net of RZE—=%+tH—H"
accumulated depreciation Nk 2BITE RRE
and impairment 12,599 55,872 - 33,408 1,318 103,197

Additions - 42,007 - 17,132 - 59,139 B

Disposals/write-off = (1,783) = (173) = (1,956) e s

Impairment - (3,012) - (1,500) - (4,512) BB

Depreciation provided during the year (596) (40,879) = (19,997) (425) (61,897) FRITERE

Exchange realignment - 2,175 - 24 1) 2,198 PE 3, A&

At 30 June 2014, net of R-Z—NmFAA=1+H"
accumulated depreciation MR EBETERBE
and impairment 12,003 54,380 - 28,894 892 96,169

At 30 June 2014: RZTE—MFERA=+AH:
Cost 20,500 299,248 8 197,752 2,431 519,939 ANE
Accumulated depreciation 2RIE LRE

and impairment (8.,497) (244,868) (8) (168,858) (1,539) (423,770)
Net carrying amount 12,003 54,380 - 28,894 892 96,169 BREFE
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

14. Y% - BEKHHE (&)

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
Gisk=s Wi & R EER

in HK$ thousand T REF MEEE 1 2% WRARRME = FX | BT T

2013 —E-=F

At 1 July 2012: RZE——FEH—H:
Cost 20,500 328,784 8 175,864 2,482 527,638 PN
Accumulated depreciation E2RINERRE

and impairment (7,305) (255,849) (8) (139,532) (878) (403,572)
Net carrying amount 13,195 72,935 = 36,332 1,604 124,066 SR EFE

At 1 July 2012, net of W—ZE—=—F+HF—H -
accumulated depreciation N 2BITE RRE
and impairment 13,195 72,935 - 36,332 1,604 124,066

Additions - 41,126 - 18,434 124 59,684 NE

Disposals/write-off = (5,922) = = (9) (5,931) &l

Impairment - (5,000) = = = (5,000) B

Depreciation provided during the year (596) (46,474) — (21,526) (404) (69,000) FRITERE

Exchange realignment = (793) = 168 3 (622) P &

At 30 June 2013, net of R-ZZE—=F<A=1+H"
accumulated depreciation MR EBETERBE
and impairment 12,599 55,872 - 33,408 1,318 103,197

At 30 June 2013: RZE—=F,A=+AH:
Cost 20,500 289,214 8 184,243 2,433 496,398 PN
Accumulated depreciation ZRETERRBE

and impairment (7,901) (233,342) (8) (150,835) (1,115) (393,201)
Net carrying amount 12,599 55,872 = 33,408 1,318 103,197 BREFE
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group'’s land included in property, plant and equipment with a net carrying amount of HK$10,233,000
(2013: HK$10,522,000) is situated in Macau and is held under a short term lease.

For the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013, the directors considered that certain property, plant
and equipment of the Group were subject to impairment loss because the cash-generating units of those
property, plant and equipment were non-performing and suffered from substantial losses for the year.

The directors estimated the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units as follows:

“bossini” products cash-generating units

The respective recoverable amounts of the “bossini” products cash-generating units have been determined
based on a value in use calculation which was approved by senior management using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of the respective items of property, plant
and equipment. Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation as at 30 June 2014 and 30 June
2013 were as follows:

2014 2013
Sales volume growth rate: 6% - 7% 3% - 9%
Gross margin rate: 58% 51% - 54%
Discount rate: 8% 13% - 15%

The directors determined the above sales volume growth rate and gross margin rate based on the
expectation of future market development.

An impairment provision of HK$4,512,000 (2013: HK$5,000,000) was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 30 June 2014.

14. Y% - BEKRFHE (&)

AEEFAME - BE KFZEREFEAB%10,233,000T (==
— =4 : %10,522,0007T) 2 i THAI B FY - I AR BT €
ﬁc

BHE-Z-NFAA=TAR=-Z—=FA=1AHALFE &
EFRR/AKEETYR BERRBELREEE  RRRZEY
¥ BELRBZASELEURARE  YRFRELESEKREE -

EEMReELEM 2T REEEMAT

[bossini] = qa B & 2 4 E 7

[bossinl ] EmeEABEMNSIRESRBERARSREENGTEE
SREREHECFEREELET  RensBUERNAESYE
BEREEBEEH T FRAFHZ P EBEEAE - R —HFN
B=tArk-_Z—=FX A=1+AxEERBEMFRZIERK
W

—2-mE —FT=F
HESHRE 6%Z=7% 3%%E9%
FEHE 58% 51%Z=54%
BRI K 8% 13%%15%

EERBEUARTAEREE LM HEEBRRERENE -

HE_Z--NFA=1THLFE REZIEEERZRERES
7 #4,512,0007T (=T — =4 : jB%5,000,0007T) °
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWH*
Group 56

2014 2013

in HK$ thousand —ZE-NF —E—=%F BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year 29,150 30,918 REFBREE
Depreciation provided during the year (1,768) (1,768) FAFTERE
Carrying amount at end of year 27,382 29,150 REFEEREE
The Group's investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases. AREBZREVMEMNNES  UREDHHEERS -
The directors of the Company have determined that the investment properties are industrial, based on RIEME 2 HEE - FEHRER  ARAREECETREMERTE
the nature, characteristic and risk of the properties. The Group’s investment properties were valued as at M  REBZIREYERB T EELSERGEMESBHRTEGE
the end of the reporting period by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, RABIRME R 2B AE141,500,0007T (ZE—=F : B
at HK$141,500,000 (2013: HK$132,400,000). Each year, the Group’s management decide to appoint 132,400,0007T) - NEF 7 BB EBREFRTE LS TINE(LER - B
which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection Y AREE YR EITIELE FUBIEE RIS  BE . E
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are VERRREREEEKRE - AEBVEEBSFRNFENBREE
maintained. The Group’s management have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and TEEERGEBRE R HESREGEMETHS c TEIREME
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial reporting. All investment TRBKEHEERTE=H  §EE—SHEERH R B H R
properties are leased to third parties under operating leases, further summary details of which are included ¥32(a) °
in note 32(a) to the financial statements.
Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on page 172. HEAREBELEYE T E—SHBEHNE1728 -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

15. REW= (&)

AV EEH
TRUBAKEZ REWEL AT EHERE

2014 —E -
Fair value measurement using
RAZAFEFE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs Total
BX BX
EIE T 8 5% Fa#EE
miSHRE BWAE BWAHE At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (B—18) (5=1E) (8=R) BT T
Recurring fair value measurement for: KEMATERNE
Industrial properties - - 141,500 141,500 TEWE

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3.

As the investment properties are measured initially at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
any impairment in value, there is no movement of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct comparison approach,
fair value is estimated by the direct comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment properties, which include the
location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit
market price. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ highest and best use, which
does not differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price. A significant increase/decrease in the market price will result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

RERN F-EERE_EBAYEQATEFE <HEE - TEEAL
BHE=ZEZBR-

R REMERR AR R ITE REEREZBEIETNRTE - &
BRAVEREF-BRBAZ AV EFELEEZS -

RNFEDERERLEEGE c RIBERLBE - RFETDAER
LEE  BRUERGEAIRTHELXKLSERUTH A LLBHE
R HMmiEhat

ETHERSZRIRENE LTI - BEUE - AN ik - 58
BE ERFOREMEER USHELTSER 2 FEHER
BEREAMEZREFRREEENES RREREFH

ITEHARBREMTIHER - ETISERKELATHE &
HIREMEATERNE LA T

TR
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16. TRADEMARK 16. BHE
Group 56
in HK$ thousand BT T
2014 —E—-NmE

Cost at 1 July 2013 and at 30 June 2014,
net of accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2014:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

2013

Cost at 1 July 2012 and at 30 June 2013,
net of accumulated impairment

At 30 June 2013:
Cost

Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

1,164

1,164

1,164

1,164

1,164

1,164

RIB—=FtA-BER-_Z-HEFRA=1H
ZRRA - kR RIERE

R-F—WFERNA=TH:
DN
ZIERE

FREFE

RIEBE——FtA—BERRZZE—=FA=+H
2R Bk BIERE

R-ZB—=FRA=1H:
DN
ZIERE

BREDFE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 F#&



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R YRR

30June 2014 —ZF—WF,A=+H

‘131

16. TRADEMARK (continued)

Indefinite useful life

The Group classified the acquired “bossini” trademark in Indonesia as an intangible asset with an indefinite
life in Indonesia in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the
“bossini” trademark has been a well known and long established fashion brand since 1987, its legal rights
are capable of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are expected to generate positive cash flows
indefinitely. The Group re-evaluates the useful life of the “bossini” trademark each year to determine
whether events or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful life of the asset.

16.

AR ()

BREAFH2BHR

AEBEREEBSHEFEIRELEE - #5HIEZ [bossini | B 1R
DR —HRHEZERPELEE - %W JIER [bossini | EE B
—NMNEFEEREMNBERELIEAZREME - EREENA
MR PBELXNERZKATERES - Rt ZAKAFH > MER
AEEZRARMBRR  BHREUERYELRSAA - AEH
FFEEMbossini | BRI EAFH  NEEREFESHRBER
BESRKEERERCAFH B -

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. B A BERE
Company AT
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-MF =% BET T
Unlisted shares, at cost 193,962 193,962 JE LTS - REANE
Provision for impairment (50,800) (50,800) BB
143,162 143,162
Due from subsidiaries 295,146 232,677 A NG s
438,308 375,839

Impairment was recognised for certain unlisted subsidiaries because these subsidiaries have been making
losses and had net deficiency in assets. There was no change in the impairment account during the year
and the prior year. The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the Company’s current assets are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand or within one year.

RRNE T LTHBRARSEELBRTSGEEFEA  At%E
B AR ZREDHER - FARREFZRERBLEEE) - RA
REMBEE AZEWHIE A BRIESEEIR - %8 MIRBKAE
AR—FREE -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Particulars

17. B A BERE (1)
TEWBARZHBENT :

Percentage of equity

registration and of issued share/ attributable Principal
Name business registered capital to the Company activities
=18 R/ EfkELBE ERTRE EAMEEZFHE AAREERER DL FEXK
Direct B 1 Indirect B
Active Link Limited (note a) Hong Kong HK$/% #5,000,0007T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
SWBBER A (Ff5ta) B% R EE R 8H
Bossini Clothing Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
BB BREE RS HH
Bossini Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$B 1T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
EBRMEDHBR DA S R EE R iH
Bossini Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$Z #27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
BRMECEBRAA] B BREE RS H
Bossini Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$B 27T = 100 Distribution of garments
BE PR 5 84
Bossini Idea Limited Hong Kong HK$ZE#17T = 100 Dormant
0 Tme
Bossini Investment Limited (note ) British Virgin Islands US$11,928% 7t 100 - Investment holding
(Pt 7Ec) EEERRAS REERK
Bossini Onmay International Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
B FEERERAA 0 BRREE RS H
Bossini Retail Limited Hong Kong HK$E 27T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
BE R EE R 8H
Bright Star Fashion Limited (note c) Macau MOP$25,00052 9 7T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
122 R BR AR (M) e BREE KD HH
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of incorporation/

Particulars

17. B A ERE (1)

TEMBARZFHBNOT - (8)

Percentage of equity

registration and of issued share/ attributable Principal
Name business registered capital to the Company activities
=18 B/ ZfkELBE ERTREAMEEZFHE AAREERER DL FEXK
Direct B 1 Indirect B
Burling Limited British Virgin Islands US$1003E 7T - 100 Licensing of trademarks
EEBERRAS SRR
BNTTEMEEXER AT People’s Republic of China RMBA K #1,010,0007T - 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
(notes b and c) ("PRC")/mainland China MREE &7 H
(M43 b&c) hEE N RHAME
(T B, EARE
J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd. (note c) Singapore SG$2,000,000% i3 7T = 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
(Fft7Ec) N R ZE &5 8H
J & R Bossini Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$E# 27T - 100 Investment holding
BREEEBRAA 0 REER
Kacono Trading Limited (note ¢) British Virgin Islands HK$/% #2,0007T - 100 Investment holding
(Bt 3Ec) EBEBRES RE 2R
Key Value Trading Limited (note ) British Virgin Islands US$1003E 7T - 100 Investment holding
(Mt3Ec) REBERRAES REERK
Land Challenger Limited Hong Kong HK$E 27T = 100 Investment holding
BAEBRAF BE REER
Lead Commence Limited Hong Kong HKS$&# 27T — 100 Retailing and distribution of garments
YRIEEBR AT 0 R EE M5 iH
Rapid City Limited Hong Kong HK$Z#27T = 100 Property holding and letting
BB R DA B MERBEREE
Sun View Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$PE#2T - 100 Property holding and letting
BREFXARRAA BB MEFBREE
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(@) The branch of this subsidiary in Taiwan was not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of
the Ernst & Young global network.

(b) BEBMTEFEEZEABRAA is a limited liability enterprise established in the PRC, which obtained its business
registration certificate on 14 July 1993.

(c) These subsidiaries were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

17.

MEQRRE (&)
ERENHEEZRAUAKBFAXEE I EX EIBNAKEF
BEEZHMNZIMBAR - EERREREMHE AR ZFITE7
Rt - RIEERITE -

B er

(@ ZMBRARNRAEDRRZKRE  AEBBEBLKEHIMETAAR
KERHEIEB A2 RIRBRES -

(b) BMTEMEEXRARANAS—MNPEXNIZEREELE  ER
—HNA=ZFLATHERBEENR -

© WEMBARZKRE  YHFMBBLKEAMEBMK L KGFEE
BRI B ES -

18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &
Group &5
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E—mE —T_ = e
Raw materials 2,674 3,557 FE R
Finished goods 283,921 301,752 LIFK oh
286,595 305,309
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19. DEBTORS 19. FE U BR X
Group £8
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-F —B—=4F BEF T
Debtors 54,607 61,663 JE WL BR 3R
Impairment (2,058) (2,045) DEREN
52,549 59,618

Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its
trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit, except for new trade customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade customers relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade debtor balances. Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

provisions, is as follows:

BRREREABHEN  AKREE-REVTRTEEZIETFLP &R
RNTREEH -BHBEHEF —RABNFEI  SEHZEFHR
BERSEERE - AKREBNE R E 2 BIUERR T BREZES -
ARG ARREREEMELERN - ERNA LA RAEEZ
YRR DR RERZ 2 EZREHEF  BAKELTESEES
ZIEERRE - REBWRHERURFESRTEEMNERRIEAM
ERRAER - BREBRBRE -

AT BRER B BMBRBB R BUCRF R R E AR ZRE DT

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E—E —=—= ST 5T
Within 1 month 34,814 42,635 R—EAA
1 to 2 months 8,995 7,228 — =M {EA
2 to 3 months 3,068 2,809 W2 =& A
Over 3 months 5,672 6,946 BlE=1A
52,549 59,618
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19. DEBTORS (continued) 19. R AR (AR)

The movements in the provision for impairment of debtors are as follows: FEW R R 2 REREHEEMNT

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-mF —F—= BT T
At beginning of year 2,045 228 R E Y]
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 1,630 1,793 EERAAEEE (ME7)
Amount written off as uncollectible (1,716) (11) AR Bl 2 FRIB M 8
Exchange realignment 99 35 ME W S
At end of year 2,058 2,045 NGRS
Included in the above provision for impairment of debtors is a provision for individually impaired debtors FPA R EMEBRER 2 R EREEE M EWERRZ @ RRESE
of HK$2,058,000 (2013: HK$2,045,000) with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$2,058,000 (2013: 2,058,0007T (— =& —=4F : 7B#£2,045,0007T) {EB 5 - EEREEA
HK$2,045,000). The individually impaired debtors relate to customers with outstanding balances which are 72,058,000 (= — =4 : B¥2,045,0007T) ° ERIRE 2 E
not expected to be recovered. WER R TE BN A Bl v BRP REEEHRBERA -
An aged analysis of the debtors that are not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as WA R SRR AR E 2 ERERZERREITAT
follows:

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZE-mF —z—= BB T
Neither past due nor impaired 42,610 48,534 REEA R AR E
Less than 1 month past due 2,062 4,982 B —1fE A
1 to 2 months past due 2,248 2,185 BH—E M E A
2 to 3 months past due 1,985 2,039 mEARE=E A
Over 3 months past due 3,644 1,878 0 HRER i = i A

52,549 59,618
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19.

DEBTORS (continued)
Debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

19.

FE W R R (4]
REPRRRE 2 BBERERZZ TR B ZBEP&LI
BEOESL -

BB ARE BRRRERS BAREER RIFBELHZ
BUEPER - RIBEELR  ARAREFEAS  MEANZLE
SIEHETRERE  HEEEERBEEAEH RARRDERS
A2 EukE -

20. DEPOSITS PAID 20. EffEZE
Group &5
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-mF =% BB
Rental deposits 111,746 113,290 MEZE
Less: Non-current portion (81,383) (78,715) & JEBNERER (D
Current portion 30,363 34,575 BN ERER 1

The rental deposits are paid for operating leases in respect of land and buildings, and are negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 15 years.

AEBREBET W MEF 2 EERNTNEERS  BECHAN T
—Z=2+HFTE -

o))
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21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B FER HE M EWERE
Group %£E Company AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZE-F —ET—=%F —E—-gF == BET T
Prepayments 14,523 37,861 170 169 iEENE N
Other receivables 43,369 40,210 = = H b jE U BR 18
57,892 78,071 170 169

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

B EENEBMIRE - BFE LAAREURRAEZ BHRANE
REEROEROESL -

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 2. EB4PESZEEEUESEEESER
Group £ Company 727
2014 2013 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-lmF —E—=F —E-lmF —T—= BT T
Cash and bank balances 264,869 233,049 567 355 Re MRTTHES
Non-pledged bank deposits with original BSEE R E R BRI A
maturity of less than three months DR =E A 2 B RIRITFR
when acquired 187,608 104,758 - -
452,477 337,807 567 355

Pledged bank deposit with original

maturity of less than three months

when acquired 1,053 776 - -
Pledged bank deposit with original

maturity of over three months when

acquired 778 - - -
1,831 776 - -
Total 454,308 338,583 567 355

BERREIHA
PR={EA 2 BEMRITER

RERREDHA
BB=EA 2B ERRITER

HmEt
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
amounted to HK$334,246,000 (2013: HK$106,762,000). Renminbi is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term bank
deposits are made for varying periods of between 1 month and 1 year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term bank deposit rates.

Pledged bank deposits of HK$1,831,000 (2013: HK$776,000) were pledged to banks as security for bank

guarantees for overseas subsidiaries of the Group as at 30 June 2014.

Cash and bank balances, the non-pledged bank deposits and the pledged bank deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

2. BERASEERB UARFEFRTER (H)

RBERR AEEUARBTEEZR S RRSEEER ABE
334,246,0007T (ZZ — =4 : £%106,762,0007T) - AREE T8
MHBEMEE  HERE T B KEINES A REE  SER
NEEERTE AEEEESBERBCEIINEER ZRITEAR
s B NS o

RITERE RIRBITERNREE 2 F B RG R - MHRITER
HENF—BAZ—%F  DRFAKEZHNBREHBTEME @ MR
MRz R BRITERM KR -

RZZE—WFERNA=+H BEMBRITFREE,831,000T (=ZF
— =1 : }5#776,00070) BB TIRITIEAAR S BN B A 71 E
SIRITIER Z KA -

Re MRTHES  BERRTERRAERRTERS FHNTH
I 2 MRk M BB ZIRTT
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23. TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. BERM - BN RIERETRE
Group %H Company 727
2014 2013 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E—MF —T—=F —ZE—NmF —T—= BT T
Trade creditors 75,515 80,110 - - FE T BR R
Other payables 25,103 34,143 297 248 H i FE < R IE
Less: Non-current portion (1,874) = — - W SEENERER
Current portion 23,229 34,143 297 248 BVER &R 1
Accruals 155,692 125,871 644 1,356 JEETRRIA
254,436 240,124 941 1,604
Group ==
An aged analysis of the trade creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is T A3 E B EABRRNDRE R ZBRE DT
as follows:
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-mF —E—=%F BT T
Within 1 month 45,693 37,978 R—EARN
1 to 2 months 18,983 30,204 —E=mMEA
2 to 3 months 6,548 6,282 WMZE=1EA
Over 3 months 4,291 5,646 Bidm=1EA
75,515 80,110
The trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days. BNERARER —MBR=TRERTRAXNT -
The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average terms of 1 month, except for other HtENFIBEALEE  BRRZZ—NFAA=+TH—FZER—F
payables of HK$1,874,000 as at 30 June 2014, which were not payable within one year. B8 2 HAth FEAT FRIBE 51,874,000 » Eep 2 FHHAR A —1E

Ao
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24. DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The Group’s amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable within 30
days from the invoice date. Certain directors of the Group’s related companies, who have beneficial equity
interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. TSIN
Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company.

24. ERRRE QBRI RIE
AEBEZENBEQARFENELRR 2B REREERBER
= t+tRAEE AEBBEERRCE THAESERLES AR
AIERREREEERAAREERSBLLZHE -

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25. fTES€mI A
Group =
2014 2013 RE
—E-mF —T—=F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
in HK$ thousand BE a1 BE af&E BETT
Forward currency contracts 309 1,137 946 73 REEEER

26.

The carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values. The above
transactions involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with creditworthy financial
institutions of credit ratings ranged from A-1 to A-1+.

During the year, the Group entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its exchange rate
exposures. These forward currency contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The net change in the fair value of these non-hedging foreign currency
contracts amounting to HK$4,845,000 (2013: HK$1,340,000) (note 7) was charged to profit or loss during
the year.

BANKING FACILITIES
At 30 June 2014, the Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$450,488,000 (2013:
HK$564,631,000), which were secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company.

EHENARCREAERREZ AFERR - DS RITESRT
B2 RGTEEETFRNFANZA N+ FERIF S RIBEETT -

FN - AEEFTUSHERHAERSRANEBHEEXRR - 25&H
BB ERWIETHELE AR  WIEAFERIBEEE - TR
ZEFRERINE S RIA T EFEB) S EE4L,845,000T (ZF—=
T A 151,340,0007T) (FI3E7) B R 1Bz AR 1Bk ©

26. RITEE
RZZE—WNEANA=ZTH AEENRTEELENARSE
450,488,0007T (== — =4 : B ¥564,631,0007T) * AR A2
R RIERIERILIF -
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27. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as follows:

Group
Deferred tax liabilities — 2014

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related

Revaluation

27. BRI E

FRAZEEHRBBEREEZSHWT

%8
EEBEAR-—F—mF

depreciation of properties Total
FEEHERB
in HK$ thousand HEHE MESHE BE AT
At 1 July 2013 326 1,857 2,183 RZE—=FtA—H
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FrEBRAEMEZEKRENR
profit or loss and other comprehensive ZBEFERIE (F4EE10)
income during the year (note 10) 123 - 123
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZZE-NERNA=ZTRAEESHBIRAE
consolidated statement of financial position BRAZELHIEAEER
at 30 June 2014 449 1,857 2,306
Deferred tax assets — 2014 EEMBEE-—Z—NF
Depreciation in
excess of related
depreciation
allowance Others Total
HEBRBNEE
in HK$ thousand HERHE Hit BE AT
At 1 July 2013 2,209 4,449 6,658 RZE—=FtA—H
Deferred tax credited to the FNEERKEMEERERTA
statement of profit or loss and other ZIEERITE (PHEE10)
comprehensive income during the year
(note 10) 222 410 632
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZZE-NERNA=TRAEEEHBIRAE
consolidated statement of financial BRAZELEHIBEEEER
position at 30 June 2014 2,431 4,859 7,290
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities — 2013

27. BRI IE (1)
EEBEEE-——Z—=fF

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
NERHEER
in HK$ thousand R E MES BE BT
At 1 July 2012 420 1,857 2,277 R-E——#+HA—H
Deferred tax credited to the statement of FAEBEREEMEZEKERTA
profit or loss and other comprehensive ZEERE (BHEE10)
income during the year (note 10) (94) - (94)
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RZE—=FAA=THEKEUHMRREK
consolidated statement of financial position BRCELEHIEAEESR
at 30 June 2013 326 1,857 2,183
Deferred tax assets — 2013 FEEREEE-—S—=H
Depreciation in  Losses available
excess of related for offsetting
depreciation against future
allowance taxable profits Others Total
R{ERE B &
HERBIEH Z R
in HK$ thousand HERBE w2 B Hit “E BT
At 1 July 2012 1,258 78 2,140 3,476 NR-_ZE——F+H—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FREBSEFEMEZERZERA (FOR)
statement of profit or loss and other ZIEFERITA (Mi3E10)
comprehensive income during the year
(note 10) 951 (78) 2,309 3,182
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the RZE—=FA=THESEUHMRRIEK
consolidated statement of financial BRZELEHIBEEER
position at 30 June 2013 2,209 - 4,449 6,658
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses of HK$11,130,000 (2013:
HK$7,238,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in
mainland China of HK$244,934,000 (2013: HK$280,910,000) and in Taiwan of HK$150,878,000 (2013:
HK$136,787,000) that can be used to offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose for a maximum of 5 years and 10 years, respectively. The Group had estimated tax losses
arising in Singapore of HK$47,998,000 (2013: HK$42,048,000) and in Malaysia of HK$6,708,000 (2013:
HK$6,808,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also had deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$3,145,000 (2013: HK$1,080,000) and HK$9,668,000 (2013: HK$9,812,000) in Singapore and
Malaysia, respectively, at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable
profits will be generated against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008. As at 30 June 2014, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding tax that
would be payable on the unremitted earning that is subject to withholding tax of a subsidiary of the
Group established in mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that the subsidiary
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary difference
associated with investment in the subsidiary in mainland China for which deferred tax liability has not been
recognised totalled HK$10,227,000 (2013: Nil) at 30 June 2014.

Company
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

27. ERERIE (1)

RBEER - NEBEREBEE Z(HETFIEEEAE®11,130,000
T (ZZE—=4 : B%7,238,0007T) * Al ERHAREREEEBEN
ANEIBBZERBRET - AEBRPBEARERESEES ZIGFTIA
E518 7 Bl &6 244,934,000 (= T — =4 : ##280,910,0007T)
K ##150,878,0007T (=& —=4F : ##136,787,0007T) * FIELEH
EEAERIEARI R EZERMNGEN&ZZ AR AFERTF - K&
B RTINS I S R P R A 2 i ET B IR IS B 9 Bl R 47,998,000
T (ZZ— =4 : 5%42,048,0007T) 76 #6,708,000c (- T —=
& : #%6,808,0007T) - AIERHIAERHEELBEATREZIE
ABURF o RIREEIR - NEERIFTINE &S RAEINE TR Y
B Z R D B #)8 #3,145,0000T (= F — =4 : #%1,080,0007T)
K 7 #9,668,0000T (ZF — =4 : B%9,812,0007T) - EERAE -
MAKRERTEHREREESTMERT R IR 8 BRIEE
B OREBIBEEWENZFTEEEITHER -

RIEPBEMEMEHRE R BEARRER NI E D ERINE R
BEESRKREEBMIO%NENT - BERENR_TZENF—A—H
AR WEARZZEE+F+-_A=1+—RBENEHN - HEDEH
AR EINEIR A B R B E R AT SRR L) - A e A RIK AT
M- RAEEME  BAREAR10% - At ZEBEBRNFEH
AERYNZEMNBRARR ST NGF— A — BRBEIMONEFK
BEMEMIENE RE—NENA=1+H  AEERRNFEH
KEZHBARERRMAE LB 2 BMAEMEMNS - WAER
EEERIE - EER A ZHBARBRAI RARKDIKEEEF
ZAREHER AR - RZT—MFENA=Z+H AR BEAERBRRR
BMEAAERECHEEE 2 BETRERES £5%10,227,000
T(ZE—=%F: &) o

N
AR B[R ECRIR A AR BB AR PRS-
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. 7
Company AT
Shares iz 13
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —Z-mF == BB T
Authorised: AR
2,000,000,000 (2013: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0008% (=2 — =4 : 2,000,000,0008%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000 SR EEBE0.107T 2 L@k
Issued and fully paid: BT RBERA
1,626,929,394 (2013: 1,620,779,394) 1,626,929,394% (==& — =4 : 1,620,779,394%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 162,693 162,078 SR EEBE0.107T 2 L@k
During the year, the movement in share capital was as follows: FRZRAELEBEF|WAT
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
ERITROEE ERITRAE R % 18 AR #at
in HK$' 000 in HK$' 000 in HK$' 000
BETT BT BT
At 1 July 2012 1,620,179,394 162,018 17,937 179,955 R—_E——FtHA—H
Exercise of share options (note a) 600,000 60 217 277 TR AR (B 5Ea)
At 30 June 2013 and 1 July 2013 1,620,779,394 162,078 18,154 180,232 RZE—=FA=1TAER=ZE—=F+tH—H
Exercise of share options (note b) 6,150,000 615 3,452 4,067 IT{ERE AR AE (B ED)
At 30 June 2014 1,626,929,394 162,693 21,606 184,299 R-ZE—WFERA=1H
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@) The subscription rights attaching to 600,000 share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.333
per share (note 29), resulting in the issue of 600,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$199,000, and the related share option reserve of HK$78,000 was transferred to the share
premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

(b) The subscription rights attaching to 2,500,000, 428,000, 600,000, 1,522,000 and 1,100,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.530 per share, HK$0.503 per share, HK$0.370 per share, HK$0.357
per share and HK$0.333 per share respectively (note 29), resulting in the issue of 6,150,000 shares of HK$0.10
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$2,672,000, and the related share option reserve of
HK$1,395,000 was transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 29 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 November 2013, the Company terminated its then share option scheme adopted on 27 November
2003 (the “2003 Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) (collectively
the “Schemes”) on the same date which has a term of 10 years from its adoption. The options which have
been granted and remained outstanding and/or committed as of the date shall continue to follow the
provisions of the 2003 Scheme and the Listing Rules.

Summary of the share option schemes of the Company is as follows:

The Schemes are for the purpose of motivating and providing incentives to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants of the Schemes include executive directors, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Company and the
Company'’s subsidiaries.

28.

29.

BRA (48)
P 3 -

(@) 600,00017 f& AR HE BT 2 SR BB AR R BB E T A B 150.333 0 1T (% (M 5E
29) - ﬁz@%&meoooooﬁﬁt%ﬁ@%%o1077:2%@ BRENEAS
ﬁ%199,000ﬁ(5ku+ﬁ;ﬁ3'z) RZEBBRAEEITER - ABEBRERES
#78,0007cE BEER M RERA -

(b) 2,500,00017 428,000 ~ 600,00017 ~ 1,522,00017 }.1,100,00017 & i
BB 2 R E S BRI E ERE0.530T - #IREK0.503 T B
f&EH#E0.3707T « FRERE0.357 0 R BB 0,333/ T{E (MI7E29) -
B 3£776,150,000 %iﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁgomﬁzw RIS RERBE
2,672,0007C (RatF ) - Rz SHEIREEITER - ABEEBRERES
#1,395,0007C BB ERMDEERA -

BB

RN BT B RARIEZ SR BB TR 2 BEY R SR
FHEE29 o

RS E

R-F-=4+-A+-R ARAKLEERR-FT=41—
AT BRMZMREN S ((—FE=F8)) - TRABRM
SRR 8 ([ —F—=F38l) (RI%SH8) - SRME
RETE - BHEEEBHATER RERERE 2 B AR
YR - FE=Fi 82 HXRETRAZAE -

ARRERAETE 2 EMT ¢

ZEHEEENE R AREREFLEMZABR2RE
BOAEERFELIEEEHES  YRAHAREFEEZIANE
IR o

ZERTEZAERBEALTBREARARARRMB AR ZHITE
FATES (BRAEMGFATES) REMZBRBES -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the 2013 Scheme and any other future share option schemes of the Company (excluding share
options forfeited in accordance with the terms of the 2013 Scheme or any other future share option
schemes of the Company) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 12 November
2013, the date of the annual general meeting that the Company sought the approval of the shareholders
of the Company for the adoption of 2013 Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the 2013 Scheme
was 162,077,939, which represented 10% of the Company’s shares in issue at 12 November 2013. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each participant in the 2013 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Options granted during the
term of the Schemes and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the
Schemes shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period
for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Schemes.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

29. B ESHE ()

BIE—T—=F 8 R AR E SR EmERE BB TR
FTABREEITERA FRTZ2RNEEEE (TEEREZS—=
FrHEIS A A AT HS R EL A FE AR A AT B G ROR W 2 BB AR #E) - 5
BBARGR-ZE—=F+—A+=8 (AIAQRS LR AEF
M_T—=FHEZRFBEFAT AL 2EETRMHAEI0% -
BT —=FEI T 2RMHEE EAREL A162,077,939
B ERARERZE—=ZF+—A+THBETRD Z210% ° R
A+ EASHEA - REERETRA S —=F 8528 ATE
TZBROEREE  WARARTEAKEEZRITRN Z1%ER -
IR BR% R ERE  BERERBRREASIE 54
B EBESEATREBBALARLERERE -

AARBESE SSTRAEBRTIERRIRESAZBEALER
hZ B - AEERBUIIFNTES (TERRE RSB REAR
AZBMIFRITES) #4 - ttH > REM T —EAHRRAR A
TERRIBIUGFATEFTIRESAZIBHBEALRH ZEMER
# - WA RREMRRED ETRM0.1% 3 AE (R AR
NEIRMWTHEE) B@ERs A 8T AIAERRNRRAS S
SR o

RO ZBRER N L B RS — T \BREARANE B
ITEBAREBEREEN CROBREZTENREERER
I BETHBBRERAGIRBRER D BRES T FRER - ®
ZEHBMRARE RN EERZETE T FHMEERA R ARTEZE
Pt - BEZSAEDER  MAREBERBGRRROBRET
EEAR AR T IATTIE ©

BEREZTEERESERER  EIRERRTZRRE : (IRE
BB th BB R R D R R P 2 W (B ¢ (DR R R AR R
B 5 B ARRRONE R 2 FHRME - Rii)A R R E
o
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. B R8I ()
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BRETERE THAEABKKREINRBRARS LIRFE 2R -
The following share options were outstanding under the Schemes during the year: FRNZEFETHRITE 2 BRENAT
2014 2013
—E-mF ==
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
AR I9TEE BREHE NETHITERE BB R B
HK$ ‘000 HKS '000
per share per share
BRE% T T4 BB T FH
At beginning of year 0.583 77,797 0.588 81,013 REFA)
Granted during the year 0.570 51,160 0.459 2,622 FART
Forfeited during the year 0.575 (17,247) 0.620 (5,238) FREIK
Exercised during the year 0.434 (6,150) 0.333 (600) FRITEE
At end of year 0.587 105,560 0.583 77,797 NGRS
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was FRBATRBERERITE B2 MR aTRERSRER0.643
T (— T T4 SRR =9 g
HK$0.643 per share (2013: HK$0.440 per share). T(=F—=F : GRENK0.4407T)
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

29. B ESHE ()
RBERRHARITEBRE ZITEERTERDT -

2014 —E-—mE
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
HBRERE TEE T8
HK$
per share
FRBET
1,800,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 ==)\¢tﬂ@5§:%‘<—t¢tﬁl:a
2,700,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 —ZF+ANBE-_T—+F+A=H
6,500,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 _2?\ —E+AMNBE-E—+F+HA=H
480,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 —EENF+—HA+HIBEZZ—tF+—HA+/\H
1,020,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EENF+—A+hBEZZE—+tF+—A+/\H
1,800,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —EZF+—A+hBE-_Z—+F+—A+/\H
1,478,000 0.357 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 —E—=F=ZA=-+ABEZZ-NF=ZA=-+HH
600,000 0.333 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 —T——FtA+HEBAE-_ZT—)/\FtA+HWH
340,000 0.333 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 —E—=FtAt+HRAE_ZE—-/\FtA+HlA
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 —ETEhF+A=+-—HE-_Z-N\E+A=+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 —E——F+A=+-BE=_E-NE+A=1+H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 :%—:¢+H:+—H§:§—)\¢+H:+E
480,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E——4F-_ANHE=Z=-_FTF_-_HA=H
720,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 R _AMOAE-_ET-_TF_H=H
1,200,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 TR =F_AWOAE—_T-_TF_H=H
3,792,000 0.503 note (a(i)) B Cadi)
5,152,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —E——+A+t-BE-_ET-_FTF+AH+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 —E——Ft+tA+-HAE_ZE_ZTF+A+—H
8,160,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 —?—:iﬂﬂ +ZHEZZE-_ZF+A+—H
11,800,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 — A+ A+-HE=_ZE-_ZFF+A+—H
82,000 0.922 note (a(iii) Bﬁaf (a(iii))
54,000 0.880 note (a(v)) M3 (av)
32,000 0.590 note (a(vii)) B 5 (a(vii))
44,000 0.550 note (a(viii) B & (aviii))
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BBIRFEFTE (E)
2014 —E—E
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
RS A TEE> TEH
HKS
per share
FREET
240,000 0.490 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2022 —E-=F+A=HE-ZT-__F+A=H
360,000 0.490 3 July 2014 to 2 July 2022 —E-NMFE+A=HE-ZE-__F+A=H
600,000 0.490 3 July 2015 to 2 July 2022 —E—hFtA=ZRE-_TE_—_F+HA=H
90,000 0.490 note (a(ix)) BT 5E (a(ix)
240,000 0.425 2 January 2014 to 1 January 2023 —E-MF-HZHE-ZT=-=F—H—H
360,000 0.425 2 January 2015 to 1 January 2023 —E-hAF—HZHEZZ=-=%—H—H
600,000 0.425 2 January 2016 to 1 January 2023 - XNF-A-HE-Z-_=F—HF—H
28,000 0.425 note (a(x)) B 5T (atx))
50,546,000 0.570 note (b(i)) BT 5E (b(i))
492,000 0.570 note (b(ii)) B 5% (b(ii))
122,000 0.714 note (b(iii)) B 5E (b(iii)
105,560,000
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

29. B ESHE ()

2013 =9—=
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
ERERE TEEE T
HKS
per share
BRAEKT
2,600,000 0.530 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2017 —EE)\FLtANBE_E—+tFEA=H
3,900,000 0.530 4 July 2010 to 3 July 2017 —E-EZFE+ANBE-_ZEZ—+E+A=H
11,000,000 0.530 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2017 —E-—F+ANBE-_ZEZ—+E+A=H
480,000 0.370 19 November 2008 to 18 November 2017 —EENFt+—At+hBE_ZE—+F+—A+N\H
1,020,000 0.370 19 November 2009 to 18 November 2017 —EENFt+—At+hBEE—+F+—A+\H
2,400,000 0.370 19 November 2010 to 18 November 2017 —E—EF+—A+hBE_ZE—+F+—A+/\H
3,000,000 0.357 26 March 2013 to 25 March 2018 —T—Z¢ A+ "BE-_ZT—N\F=ZA-+EH
1,140,000 0.333 15 July 2011 to 14 July 2018 —E——FtA+HRAZE_ZT—/\FtA+HMA
900,000 0.333 15 July 2013 to 14 July 2018 =%t A+RRAEZZT-N\FtA+HMA
600,000 0.160 31 October 2009 to 30 October 2018 —EEAFtTA=+—BE_Z—N\FT+A=1+H
900,000 0.160 31 October 2011 to 30 October 2018 —E——FtA=+—BE-_ZE—-N\Ft+A=+H
1,500,000 0.160 31 October 2013 to 30 October 2018 =%+ A=+—HE-_Z—-N\FE+A=+H
480,000 0.456 4 February 2011 to 3 February 2020 —E—— 4 -_AWMBE_ZE_TF-HA=H
720,000 0.456 4 February 2012 to 3 February 2020 —E—-—_F-HAWMAH §_ S-TF-_H=H
1,200,000 0.456 4 February 2013 to 3 February 2020 —E-=F-_HNHE=-ZT=_FTF=-_H=H
13,400,000 0.503 note (a(i)) B & (ai))
5,152,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —E——F+A+-BE_ZT-_FF+A+—H
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 B2+ /+-_HE_ZET-_TF+A+—H
8,160,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 =+ A+_HE_Z_ZTF+A+—H
11,800,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —E—hFtAt+-HE-_Z-_ZF+A+—H
974,000 0.780 note (a(ii) M FE (a(ii)
175,000 0.922 note (a(iii) B = (adii))
80,000 0.894 note (a(iv)) B = (adiv))
216,000 0.880 4 July 2012 to 3 July 2021 - —HFt+tANHE-_ZT-_—%+HA=H
324,000 0.880 4 July 2013 to 3 July 2021 —E—=—H#+ANHAE=-_ZE=-—%+HA=H
540,000 0.880 4 July 2014 to 3 July 2021 —E-NME+ANAE-_ZE=-—F+H=H
296,000 0.880 note (a(v)) B = (a(v))
240,000 0.720 1 November 2012 to 31 October 2021 —T——iJr A—Bzz_FZ-_—4%+A=+—H
360,000 0.720 1 November 2013 to 31 October 2021 —i——¢+ A—Bz=_F-_—4%+A=+—H
600,000 0.720 1 November 2014 to 31 October 2021 —mF+—A—RAE_ZE-_—F+HA=+—H
86,000 0.720 note (a(vi)) MTE(a (vi))
162,000 0.590 note (a(vii) B = (avii))
122,000 0.550 note (a(viii)) B 3T (a(viii))

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2R EBEER AR



152‘

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eupy R R

30 June 2014 —Z—FNA=+H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. B AEST & (&)
2013 —Eg—=
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE T EfE* 1B
HKS
per share
BRAKT
240,000 0.490 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2022 B =t /=HE-_ZT-_—_F+H_-H
360,000 0.490 3 July 2014 to 2 July 2022 —E-NME+A=AE-_ZE-_—_F+A-H
600,000 0.490 3 July 2015 to 2 July 2022 —E—RFtA=ZHE-_E-_—_F+HA_-H
158,000 0.490 note (a(ix)) M 5 (a(ix))
240,000 0.425 2 January 2014 to 1 January 2023 —E-NF-AZHE-ZE-_=F—HF—H
360,000 0.425 2 January 2015 to 1 January 2023 —hF—-HAZHAE-_T_=F—H—H
600,000 0.425 2 January 2016 to 1 January 2023 :5—5—/\¢ AZRAZz_Z_=%—A—H
28,000 0.425 note (a(x)) B 7E(a(x)
36,000 0.435 note (a(xi)) B E(a(xi)

77,797,000

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company’s share capital.

Notes:

(@) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2013, including but not
limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or
any portion thereof shall be forfeited if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:

(i)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020.

(i)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 11 October 2020.

(ili) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021.

* BREZITEENRBRMRKBEITAR AR R RAZ EMELE
B T UAFAEE

BT

() BEENBBIENARANKRRIBE_T-—=F/ A=1+AL=
FHE FAEEEIN=F£EA R (BEEATRNEXREEE  IK
REEXRRBR) SHMAR - WREEREH=_FEEBER  1HHEE
PR ok AT BD 1D S & 3ROR UK o
BRETERMT

(@) dﬂ?‘Jl‘Kﬁlﬁif%‘\*:iﬁﬂE+EI¢¢J+ZW$$? RAE
BAMREENEXARBTE 2T _FFLAWA -

(i) ATBEAEEHE—_T—= i/ﬁﬁi"f’EleiﬁZ@%ﬁ%é
BRMREENEEARBTE 22 -_2F+A+—B-

(i) AABAEEBE_ZT-—=F NA=THLFEZRERREE
BAMREENEEARBTR 2T _—F—-H=-R-
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

The exercise periods of share options are as follows: (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

=

(viii

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 May 2021.

From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021.

From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 31 October 2021.

From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2022.

From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 1 May 2022.

From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 July 2022.

From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 1 January 2023.

From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 28 February 2023.

Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ending 30 June 2016, including but not
limited to the achievement of strategic goals, financial and operational performance targets. The share options or
any portion thereof shall be forfeited if the relevant 3-year corporate goals cannot be achieved.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:

@
(ii)
(iii)

From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023.
From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024.

From 1 November 2016 to 2 March 2024.

29. RSB ()

BsE : ()

(a)

BRETEBNT - (B

vy AHIBEAEEHE T =F NA=THILFEZREREA?
BAMREENEXARBTE E—F _—FAA_R-

v BHEAKREBE—Z-—=FX AZTHRLFEZERREGAE
BAMREENEXEARBTE E—F _—FtHA=R"-

V) BWBARERE-F-=£AA=TALEEZEEREA R
MR EENERBRAGR 2 —F+A=+—8"
M EARERE_S-=FXA=TELFEZEERGAE
AR EENEXERMAGE E-F-—F A=A

(vii)

HABAEEEE T =F A=THLFEZLERGFEEE
BAMREENEXRRBTE E_F__FAA—H-

(viii
(ix» HATEAEREE T =FNA=-tTHELFE EERRAE
BAMEBREENEEBRGTE E2F_FtA=H-

N BAEAEEBE—Z-— = A=ZTRALFEZEERGEE
BAMREENEXARBTE E—F_=F—H—R-

i) RTEAKREBE—Z-—=F NA=ZTRLFEZEBRREGAE
BAMREENEXARBTE E—F_=F_A_1+/\H-

ERENEBZENARANRARBE=S—"FA=THILE=
FHE  AEBEIN=FEEFZ(BEETRREBCREERZE B
REBERBEE) SIEMRR - MAEEREE-"FEEEZ  HEE
B s H AT 3B 15 48 S 2 Uk o

FERRRETE AT -

iy A-Z—A"Et+—A—ARE-_T_=F+-F—H-

iy HZZE—A"E+—A—BARE=Z-_mMF—HA—H-

(i) AZFE—R"F+—A—HRBE-_ZFT_WF=A—H-
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. B R8I ()
On 2 December 2013, 2 January 2014 and 3 March 2014, the Company granted share options of RZTE—=F+-AZH ZZE—NF-AZBRZZE—NF=A
50,546,000, 492,000, and 122,000, respectively, to its directors and employees. The fair value of the share —Z B ARADRIMEZEE REEBRKT50,546,00017 + 492,0001%
options granted during the year was HK$12,877,000 (HK$0.25 each), of which the Group recognised a 122,00017 i B 4 » F A B2 3% B8 IR 2 X 7 (B 7% 78 612,877,000
share option expense of HK$2,534,000 in the current year. The Group recognised an aggregate share T (FNEB0.25T) » ERANEBRAEE D HERERER B
option expense of HK$3,261,000 in the current year for the 105,560,000 share options outstanding as at 2,534,0007T © 75 [F 5t 50 & B K = AR 77188 2.105,560,00017 i AR
the end of the reporting period. TN [EHE R AR ) 2 & B H63,261,0007T ©
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year was estimated as at the date of RERNRE 2 B EEBERE 2 2 TEDRRE BB - 7
grant, using a trinomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were A=EXREEERR - £ RE L EREZ R RIGEEmET
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used: Ho TR FMEAERX 25 AER -
2014 2013
=EF-mF —F=F
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 4.44 3.75 nEFH AR S (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 53.65 56.65 DN 739 78 B K Bh(%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 53.65 56.65 ANHE S 35 FE 5208 Eh(%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 2.1 0.81 DN ST 5 18 [ Bz ) 22(%)
Expected life of options (year) 10 10 BARETEETFH (5)
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.570 0.459 mnEFHRE (FREET)
The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is not necessarily BRECEFFHNDERBETE2RLBBRET - ARPYEREA
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the BEMIR 2 BARETTERL o« HEDR S HIRIEE LR B B AR KB
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. 2 BORMBEBERERAMR
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value. REtBE QT EER BT RATEERE 2 E R EtiFE -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 105,560,000 share options outstanding under the
Schemes, which represented approximately 6.49% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 105,560,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$10,556,000 and share premium of approximately HK$80,489,000 (before issue
expenses).

The 6,150,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of 6,150,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, as further detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 10 July 2014, 200,000 and 28,000 share options
granted to certain employees on 5 July 2010 and 2 January 2013, respectively, were exercised with exercise
prices of HK$0.503 per share and HK$0.425 per share, respectively, and exercise periods from the next
business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020 and 1 January 2023, respectively. The price of the Company’s
shares at the date of exercise was HK$0.660 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the
trading day immediately prior to the date of exercise of the options.

On 21 August 2014, 18,000 and 360,000 share options granted to an employee on 5 July 2010 and 2
December 2013, respectively, were forfeited with exercise prices of HK$0.503 per share and HK$0.570 per
share, respectively, and exercise periods from the next business day of publication of the announcement
of the audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020, and
from 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023, respectively. The price of the Company’s shares at the date
of forfeiture was HK$0.690 per share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of forfeiture of the options.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 104,954,000 share options
outstanding under the Schemes, which represented approximately 6.45% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

29. B ESHE ()

RERR ARAAZEFEEBTZHRTEZERES
105,560,0001) * HHE R eZ B AR A B 2 1T 1) £96.49% ° A
RARBRNEETHITERT 2BRE - BEBARAETLH
105,560,0003% BN & 3@ AR A% 1) 1 AR AN K2 IR 19 3 (B 18 95 BII 38 hn &Y
75 10,556,0007T & 4978 #80,489,0007T (R 1TR ) o

F A+ 6,150,0007 ff A% #EFE 178 B 25 176,150,00008 AN 2 7] E 18
M5 FEEE R BRI 28 -

R|EPRE  RZZ—WFLA+H - SR —ZF+AH
Ak=ZF—=F—AZHAKTH TIEE 2200,00017 # %4 % 28,000
DREREC EITE - 1TEE D B AFREE0.503 7T R FRRE0.425
T TESHS R ATEAKERE TS —=FA=TRHILEFEZ
KEZTAEBAMEBZRENEXAMAKR 222 -_ZF - AMA
R=ZZ==F—F—A0 - ARaRMHRITER B ERAEREE
0.6607T * BN EEREITF BRI S AEB T 2 WME -

RZE—NENAZ+—RB ShR=E—ZTFLARAEE=Z
—=F+=-_A AR T —HEE 218,00017 B I }2360,00017 E& 1%
BRI - 1TEED B ASRE®0.5037T & &R B#0.5707T
TEHS AN EARERRE T =FNA=THLFEZLKE
IR ARBEAGREENEEAMG 2T _SF tANBAR=
E—RE+—A—HRE-_E-_=F+=-A—H - ALTRGRE
W B 2 B ASRE06907T - NERZERELKBHINXZS
BTz B -

Rz S IR ALE R H - AR BREZF1815104,954,00007 1%
RITEZBEHE  HERARARRZ A ZEHIT416.45% °
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30. RESERVES 30. fZ&
Group 56
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are AEERBAEERAERREREPEE HE25NMBHREY
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. The amounts of I AREABEREAENRN - N BT FHACHTEREDNSE30%EME
goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, remaining WEHBARFEAMR - E—NEXA=+BNEREEEN
in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained profits amounted to HK$3,292,000 and B RS RBRFN T RS R AB S 202,000 K&k

HK$20,982,000, respectively, as at 30 June 2014. 20,982,0005% *

Company aF
Share Share
premium Contributed option Retained
Notes account surplus reserve profits Total

in HK$ thousand B % 13 % (8 AR AR B IR e R RERF wE BT
At 1 July 2013 18,154 157,616 17,250 19,661 212,681 RZE—=FtHA—H
Total comprehensive income for the year = = = 114,086 114,086 FAZEW BT
Issue of shares 28 3,452 - (1,395) - 2,057 EITRAD
Equity-settled share option arrangements 29 - - 3,261 - 3,261 A EEREL
Final 2013 dividend declared 12 - - - (9,725) (9,725) EER-Z—=FRHPKELE
Special final 2013 dividend declared 12 - - - (9,725) (9,725) EER-ZZE—=FFARERKRE
Interim 2014 dividend 12 - - - (37,343) (37,343) “E-MERHRE
At 30 June 2014 21,606*  157,616* 19,116* 76,954** 275,292 R-ZE—MFRA=1+H
At 1 July 2012 17,937 157,616 13,915 193 189,661 RZE——F+HF—H
Total comprehensive income for the year = = = 46,697 46,697 FAZEW BT
Issue of shares 28 217 = (78) - 139 BTG
Equity-settled share option arrangements = = 3,413 - 3,413 S E BT
Interim 2013 dividend 12 - - - (10,211) (10,211) —T=FhHRKRE
Special interim 2013 dividend 12 = = = (17,018) (17,018) —E-=FFRPHRKRE
At 30 June 2013 18,154* 157,616* 17,250* 19,661*# 212,681 RZZE—=FA=+H
*  These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of HK$275,292,000 (2013: HK$212,681,000) in the statement of * WERFRERE®SINNMBARREKAZ HEE275,292,0007T (ZF

financial position. — =4 : ##212,681,0007T) °
*  The retained profits comprised the proposed final dividend of HK$51,574,000 (2013: HK$9,725,000) and tRBARMNBEEEEZ-NEFANAZTHIEFEZHIRRAREEE

proposed special final dividend of HK$25,380,000 (2013: HK$9,725,000) for the year ended 30 June 2014. 51,574,00070 (= F — = : ##9,725,00070) & K FF B K HA A% 8.5

#25,380,0007T (= Z — =4 : #%9,725,0007T) °
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30. RESERVES (continued)

31.

32.

The contributed surplus of the Company originally represented the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and the
aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, at the time of the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, the Company may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed surplus.

The share option reserve of the Group and the Company comprises the fair value of share options granted
which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

Certain additions of property, plant and equipment of HK$6,149,000 (2013: Nil) were not paid at the end
of the reporting period and were recorded as accruals.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Group

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties and sub-leases certain of its retail properties under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 2 to 4 years. The terms
of the leases also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 30 June 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

30.

31.

32.

e ()
RABZEABBRIIN—NAN=ZF KRR FKRMH EHAELEE
EAR  AABRXBMIMBRRCD ETRAMBETZRNEE &
REBMBARRKBEANEEFEANZERE REARE
—HN—FREE > RNRBAHBARBKD IR T EERE

AEERARR 2 BRERBERBCROERRITEBREZQF
B #BEHERUBRRME2ABRUABRN XN RAZR S 2 €5t
BEA - BRERAERNAEBEREETERERERMEER - X
11 45 8 A A o S ORI I =R B R A o

FERTRERME

FEFRAERS

REERE,149,0007C (ZT— =5 : &) 2B TYE - BMERRER
ERHERRL RN AL FIERETARIE

KEHE R

L]

(a) FERHBEA
AEBAEKLEHEZZHT BHERENERSBEEETE
EME BFELHMA_EMFEAE - ZEHZGHTREMR
EABNRERS

RZZB-—WFERA=1TH  AREERBPRIT 2 TAIREZ
KEMET FRRERERURFARRIIBAELT

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-mF —E—=F BT T
Within one year 6,560 4,302 R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2,355 6,146 REZFEFRFT  REEEMF
8,915 10,448
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its offices, retail stores and warehouse properties under operating lease

arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 15 years.

At 30 June 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

32.

KemE 228 (&)
(b) EREEA

FEBAELEHEZRYT HRETHAE ZTEEHLE
BRME ZEVNERE2EBE—FETAFSE -

REZZB-—MERA=1TH AEEBETAIHHEZKREHEET -
PERRERENIEENIHEMT

2013
in HK$ thousand —E—=F BB T
Within one year 361,018 R—FRN
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 583,569 RE_FZFERT  BEEEMSF
After five years 52,806 hF®
997,393

The operating lease rentals of certain retail stores are based solely on the sales of those stores or on the
higher of a fixed rental and contingent rent based on the sales of those stores. In the opinion of the
directors, as the future sales of those retail stores could not be accurately estimated, the relevant rental
commitments have not been included above. The total future minimum lease payments included

management fee of a shop.

Company

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases.

i >
ST o)
¢ o

\
L

ETEEER KL HEHSERREEH 2 HEEAERIE
BEHEEZSEHHEERMEE cXAEEMET Z2ES
EEE -EEZRR BRBEUNEEGAAZETEERHAKZH
SR ALY EREAEESRAE - BRKEHENRERE
BRE-—REHIERER -

R RNABENATHBEEEHET - YELMN B RKEHR

o

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 F#&



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R YRR

30June 2014 —ZF—WF,A=+H

‘759

33.

COMMITMENTS
Group

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 32(b) above, the Group had the following

capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

33.

AR

55

BRSO RE32(b) s i 2 A B T EARIE SN - REERRERAZE
AESERT

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZE-NF —T—= BT T
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI B R B
Leasehold improvement 8,658 - HEMEEE
Computer software 1,837 3,062 ES e
10,495 3,062
Company AT

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any significant commitments.

R|EHR - AR R L EAEREARRE -

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. FREE
Group £5
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E—mE —E_— SR T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and REKEREAMELZSZ
property rental deposits 7,146 7,729 BITER

The Company has given guarantees in favour of banks to the extent of HK$551,955,000 (2013:
HK$765,346,000) in respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. These facilities were

utilised to the extent of HK$53,713,000 (2013: HK$58,087,000) as at 30 June 2014.

ARBHETHEBRARMER ZBRITEEEMRITIEL AR
551,955,0007T (ZZF — =4 : #%765,346,0007T) < &R * R=ZZ
—MWEAAR=1+THE®AZEERE A B53,713,000T (ZE—=
£ ##58,087,0007T) °
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Group
(a) Material transactions with related parties

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the

5. BEAELRS
£
() EEBIEALTZEARS
MBS RRAER 2 X FHN  REBPNENEGBATHRTY

following material transactions with related parties during the year: EAZSWT
Note 2013

in HK$ thousand Bt 5 = BT T

Purchases of garments (i) 167,168 PREERK IR

Note: B 5

(i)  During the year, garments totalling HK$152,323,000 (2013: HK$167,168,000) were purchased from certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Laws International Group Limited (“Laws International”). The purchases were
determined by reference to the prevailing market prices. Certain directors of Laws International, who have
beneficial equity interests therein, are relatives of Mr. LAW Ka Sing, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, a director of the Company. The balance owing to these suppliers as at 30 June

2014 was HK$17,478,000 (2013: HK$23,617,000).

The related party transactions above also constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group’s balances with related companies as at the end of the reporting period are

included in note 24 to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

(i) EW ARARAETEKEREEFRAR ([BRER]) 2&EKH B
NS #£8%152,323,0007T (ZZT— =4 : #% 167,168,000
TZHRK - IREDH2RERZMEER] - BEREBRZETHEE

ERAER ZEENARATERRRERBEEER AR EERE
SRLZTZHEBE R _E—NENA=ZTEHRZSHER %
HAB117,478,0007T (T — =4 : #%23,617,0007T) °

BRZEAEALZZITER EMRRE AR EZFHER

(b) EEEEA LT ZREBERELEHR
REEHR - Zli’iléﬁifﬁ RNEIZ ERFIBE R FHREM T
24 -

() FEEBABZHME

2013
in HK$ thousand —E-mF = BT T
Short term employee benefits 20,130 REAEERET
Performance related bonuses 1,251 HIRIRAEM 2 fEAT
Equity-settled share option expense 2,287 TEﬁ, EERERERX
Pension scheme contributions 277 RIKEFTEIHER
Total compensation paid to key management SN TFTEEERAS cHERSE
personnel 23,945

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

EEMe 2E—THBCHARY B MRMES -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

36. 2T ESHE
RBEHR SESHRIAFETENT

Group 56
Financial assets — 2014 CREE-—E—NE
Financial
assets at fair
value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
RAFEREBRE BRE
in HK$ thousand JIRzeRmEE FEWLAR X At BT T
Deposits paid - 111,746 111,746 EfiiRe
Debtors - 52,549 52,549 JE U BR 5K
Bills receivable - 58,849 58,849 e E 15
Financial assets included in prepayments B AT A TR /I8 & E b fE U BR 1E
and other receivables (note 21) = 43,369 43,369 Z2emEE (MI:F21)
Derivative financial instruments 309 - 309 MTESETA
Pledged bank deposits - 1,831 1,831 EEIPRITER
Cash and cash equivalents = 452,477 452,477 RekBEeFHEEE
309 720,821 721,130
Financial liabilities — 2014 SREE-—FE—NE
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BRAFEREBZER REBHAATIE
in HK$ thousand JIfRz e WMERE Zemas At BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, Bt AR - B A 5IE &
other payables and accruals - 210,854 210,854 JEEtERIEZ 2B A G
Bills payable - 46,334 46,334 ERNER®
Due to related companies = 17,478 17,478 FETREE A R FRIE
Derivative financial instruments 1,137 - 1,137 MESBTA
1,137 274,666 275,803
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

36. Rl T A2 % ()

Financial assets — 2013 SRMEE-—ZT—=
Financial
assets at fair
value through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
ZAFERERER BR R
in HK$ thousand PRz SREE JIE U BR 3R 5t BT T
Deposits paid = 113,290 113,290 [RANE &0
Debtors - 59,618 59,618 JE Us BR 3K
Bills receivable - 48,361 48,361 FEWRIR
Financial assets included in prepayments Bt AT FIE K H b fE KR IA
and other receivables (note 21) = 40,210 40,210 2 rEE (MEE21)
Derivative financial instruments 946 = 946 MESMTAE
Pledged bank deposits — 776 776 EEIPIRITER
Cash and cash equivalents = 337,807 337,807 ReMBFEFHEEE
946 600,062 601,008
Financial liabilities — 2013 cRAEE-—2—=F
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BATERBEER REHEXAIE
in HK$ thousand IRz EMEaE 2B E Fob BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, BT AN - HARMNFURR
other payables and accruals = 188,524 188,524 EEtERIE 2 RBE
Bills payable = 50,255 50,255 NS
Due to related companies = 23,617 23,617 RN BB R AR
Derivative financial instruments 73 = 73 TESHITA
73 262,396 262,469
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 36. £ T BN (&)
Company AT
Financial assets EMEE
Loans and receivables
B R EWER
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZET-MF —E—=%F BT T
Due from subsidiaries 295,146 232,677 FEUSHI A FIFIE
Cash and cash equivalents 567 355 ReRkREEFEMHEIER
295,713 233,032
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
RBHEARINEZSHEE
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZET-MF —E—=%F BT T
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals 941 1,604 EEtARMBENRIEREFREZSBEE
37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 37. 2RI A2 AT ERATEHERS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying AEBEMIAZERAEBELATFENT @ EREEEQFESEE
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: BERIN
Group 56
Carrying amounts BREI{E Fair values 2 F{&
2014 2013 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —E-mE —T—=%F —ZT-MF —ET—=F BT
Financial assets EREE
Derivative financial instruments 309 946 309 946 PTHEEHMT A
Financial liabilities cREE
Derivative financial instruments 1,137 73 1,137 73 PTESMT A
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits,
debtors, bills receivable, deposits paid, financial assets included in prepayments and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in trade creditors, other payables and accruals, bills payable and amounts due
to related companies approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s finance team headed by the finance director is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the finance
team analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by senior management.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits paid and the non-current portion of other payables have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments (i.e., forward currency contracts) with creditworthy
financial institutions with credit rating ranging from A-1 to A-1+. Derivative financial instruments,
including forward currency contracts, are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing,
using present value calculations. The models incorporate various market observable inputs including the
credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate curves. The
carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

37. EMT A2 AFERAFERSE (&)

ERECDHHRESIASEEER FHEMFRITENR - BAERR
BUWEE CHZE B ABNKEAREMRKERREZSRE
E  BERtARMER  HtENHEREFRECEREE BN
RERENBERRRBE L A TEEREZREERBS - T2H
RzETAETREHARBH -

AEEHYBRETARIMBEFARNEEMTARFEAEZ
BERMEF REREEH  BEBRITERTAZEEZS
WEERAGETZBARE - AEASREEZEEMNRILE -

TREERABEZATERENRSTENBRETREZERA
B RHSUBRBERSI - ARG RFEZTERKRRLT

BB RS RE RN FRIEAE R 2 X FERAFRLUE
R EERREMNGFER TAZRITNENBERARKRESRE

.
ATE -

AEBEEEFRNFANZA-+ZEERIFSRMBBITLITES
RTABIEBRERAR) - fTESRTAE  BREHRERKAR 13
RASEEAFEERUNGERN - RAREAEETE - ZFRE
BEZEMSUBEBAE  BREUFNEEEER INENHR
EHIN R LA KR o 2R EBARNEEAERREN A HERR -
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

AT EEMS

37. EMT A2 AVFERAFERSE (F)

TERMATEESMT A A FEERHE :

Assets measured at fair value R FEGTEZEE
Group =m
2014 —E-0F
Fair value measurement using
KAz AT ETE
Quoted price Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs Total
EXTHE EXTUHE
ERMWSRE BASE BWABE Bt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (%E—F8) (5=F) (=) BET T
Derivative financial instruments - 309 — 309 TESRTA
2013 —E—=£F
Fair value measurement using
RHEZAFEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs Total
BAABRE BANABEE
EER TS IRE A SR oA BUE #Et
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (B—E) (BZfE) (F=1E) BT T
Derivative financial instruments = 946 = 946 PTESBTA
Company A

The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair value as at 30 June 2014 and 30 June

2013.

ARAR _E-—OFAA=ZTAR - ZE—=FRNA=THLEEM
BRAVEAEZEMEE -
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 37. 8T EAFTERAFELERE ()
Liabilities measured at fair value R FEFTECBE
Group =
2014 —_E—MF

Fair value measurement using
RAZAFETE
Quoted price Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs Total
BEAUEHE EATUHEE
SERMISRE BWAHE [N ¢ At
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (E—FE) (E=1B) (B=FB) BT T
Derivative financial instruments - 1,137 - 1,137 PTESRIA
2013 —E-=F
Fair value measurement using
KAz AT EE
Quoted price Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
market inputs inputs Total
BAAEBR FATAER
ERTSRE [P €7 AR HEt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
in HK$ thousand (E—/E) (B=E) (B=B) BT T
Derivative financial instruments = 73 = 73 PTEEmIA
Company AT
The Company did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 June 2014 and 30 June RARRZE—NFRNA=THARZZE—=FA=THAEEM
2013, BATEFEZEMARE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than its derivative financial instruments, comprise cash
and bank balances, time deposits and bills payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as debtors, deposits paid and trade creditors, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the foreign currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The senior management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note
2.4 to the financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and purchases
in foreign operations in currencies other than the United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar.
Approximately 31% (2013: 35%) of the Group's sales were denominated in currencies other than the
United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar. It is the Group’s policy to enter into forward currency
contracts to mitigate foreign currency risk arising from material transactions denominated in currencies
other than the United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar.

At 30 June 2014, the Group had forward currency contracts with an aggregate nominal amount of
HK$205 million (2013: HK$103 million) to manage its foreign currency risk in Renminbi, Singapore dollar
and Taiwan dollar.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Renminbi, Singapore dollar and Taiwan dollar exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit after tax and equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities and forward currency contracts).

38. WK EEE B ERBUER
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

38. MR bR EE B R R BUR (&)

Foreign currency risk (continued) SNE [ B (48)
HK$ Increase/(decrease) HK$ Increase/(decrease)
weakens in profit after strengthens in profit after
against tax and equity against tax and equity
BT A RRBE R T R BITHERA FRBL B EF R
EHEE LM D) BEFHE M CRL)
% 2014 2013 % 2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —2-mE —T-=F —2-mE —T-=F BET T
Renminbi 5 17,303 6,583 5 (17,303) (6,583) AR
Singapore dollar 5 4,826 3,467 5 (4,826) (3,467) T
Taiwan dollar 5 (2,621) (1,662) 5 2,621 1,662 =
Credit risk FERE

The Group trades primarily in cash and credit cards, and it is the Group’s policy to trade on credit terms
with recognised and creditworthy third parties only. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group places cash and cash equivalents with reputable banks to minimise the credit risk thereof.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty and by geographical region. There are no significant concentrations

of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from debtors are disclosed

in note 19 to the financial statements.

AEBZESTEURSREREY - AEBZBERAERZR
REBREZE=ZTETRS 1IN XEE S TEEREEARK
ey MAEETAR 2 ZRRERBEMY

AEEFReRREFEREFRNBERIFZRT  UBEER

R E&E -

AEEHEMEREEZFEERRKBHF I ZKRE  MEAZER
HERZETAZKREE SHEERRBEREFS X5HTERE
kB o -  SEAYEEAEHEERR

EAREEMARKREEEERZEERRZEZE(CRIBERY
TEIMARMFE19KE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors) and projected

cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility by keeping
adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of HK$450,488,000 and

approximately HK$53,713,000 was utilised as at 30 June 2014.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

38. R bR EE B R R BUR (&)

RBES @R
FEEMNAEEERDRETAERECERRER ZTAHES
BTAREREE (WMEKER) WEIHABRENSEELNRE

2
L °

AEBZEEZEAESEEZHETEEBFRTRIETMEEBZER
EMERSTEEH N_Z—NFENA=Z+H8 AEBEEZERTE
B35 A5 %450,488,0007T & 478 %53,713,0007 &S A -

RBERR  NEBERBTOERBRNRZERHAEDHER
a0

B 2

Group 56
On demand or less than 1 year

RERRDA—F

2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZE-NF —E—=F BT T
Financial liabilities included in trade creditors, EEt AR - HAb B RIE R

other payables and accruals 210,854 188,524 EETERIBZ @@ BE
Bills payable 46,334 50,255 R EE
Due to related companies 17,478 23,617 FETRAE N RIFRIE
Derivative financial instruments 1,137 73 THEEMmT A
275,803 262,469
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

38. MR bR EE B R R BUR (&)

REBESER (&)
RBEHR - ARAAERDATNERMERENRZERBEIRER
LURNE

Company AT
On demand or less than 1 year
RERRDA—F
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —Z-NF —T—=F BB T
Financial liabilities included in other B ET AE M FIE R E R ERIE
payables and accruals 941 1,604 ZEemBetE
Guarantees given to banks in connection DB AR ER ZEEMRIRITIREER
with facilities granted to subsidiaries 53,713 58,087
54,654 59,691

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank
borrowings over total equity. The Group targets to maintain a gearing ratio of 70% or below.

EXEE
AEEEAEENEZRR  AEAAKBEABKARRNE
BAERBRENEARLE  UHEERBERF - FMEANRREE -

AEBRBEHBEANEY LAEEENRARISE - BEEELRE
BAEHAR - BEFIABRERERE  AEEREARARRE
REZRE ARRKEEARLETHR BE_T-—NFR_F
—=ZFANAZTHLSFE  UEFREREANBER - BRIEF -

AEBERAABRTERGERATEZEEA B REEE AR
Mo AEEZBFERRFEERBLERR/IONHIAT -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 F#&



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g | 1/1

30June 2014 —ZE—MFEA=+H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) 38. I EMEEEERBE (&)
Capital management (continued) EAREE (F)
The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios as at the end of the SREEETHENEEAGBHE -NBERRNEEEBEL XN
reporting periods are as follows: N
2014 2013
in HK$ thousand —ZE-NF —T—= BT T
Interest-bearing bank borrowing - - FEIRITER
Total equity 802,249 728,604 MR
Gearing ratio N/ATiE i * N/AZT i A * BEABHX
* At 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 the Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowing. * R -E-MENA=FTER-_ZE-—=FXNA=+H0 AEBEREGHA
IRITER ©
39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39. R 2 HL B -
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 EERCN-FT-HFAATLRMERREERH AR RE
September 2014.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REW=

Attributable

interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
it 26 Ay FH rEEEGRER
Units 1 and 2, 8th Floor, Unit 1, 9th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor term
Cheung Fung Industrial Building lease
No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
FREE B RBH23-295% I hHEE

RETEAESRBIN2E »
9E1E R 1EL1255HE L
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Global distribution network

2R AR

Mainland China # Bl APz
Directly managed E# &2 124 (144)

Franchised 45 & 48 & 96 (156)
Hong Kong &% 41 (41)
Singapore 7 N 30 (30)
Taiwan & /& 72 (85)
Bangladesh @ iz 1(0)
Brunei 303 2(2)
Cambodia 53 2(2)
Cyprus 258 i 9(9)
Czech Republic 72 £ F1E 0(5)
Dominican Republic

Z e L FE 5 (6)
Egypt 5 % 1(4)
India ENfZ 127 (107)
Indonesia ENfE 26 (23)
Kenya 5 /B2 2 (0)
Libya Ftt g5 3(3)
Malaysia 55 2 #age 20(18)
Malta & &t 0(4)
Middle East* A& * 285 (271)
Mongolia 5 & 2(2)
Mozambique Bt 5w 1(1)
Myanmar #i ) 15 (13)
Nepal B A8 2(2)
Philippines JE#2% 0(4)
Reunion Island % EfL S 1(1)
Romania % & /225 8(6)
Slovakia H#7& k5% 0(4)
Thailand Z= & 72 (65)
Venezuela Z A imHz 5(3)
Vietnam 5 10 (6)

220:00)

directly managed and franchised
stores in mainland China

NP B KR Y B 3 B IR AT
EEIEE

e®

Q@%

143(1 56)

directly managed stores in

Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore
RIREE - A RTINS
WERERIESE

599(561)

export franchised stores

H O RHSEIEE

962(1017)

stores in about 36 countries and regions

EEBLIRA36{EBR f i@

Regional retail performance indicators & Z & & KIRIEIZ

* The Middle East includes Armenia, Bahrain, Iran, Iraq, Jordan, Kuwait,
Lebanon, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, UAE and Yemen

RREFERERE  BA - FR - FRR - HE - BEE

ROW - S FERE - DRAAME - MREHSERER B

() Figures at 30 June 2013 are shown in brackets
REB-=FXA=THZBFUESRRT

Same-store sales growth (%)*

Sales per sq. ft. (in HK$)

Floor area (sq. ft.)

BEHEREER (%)* BEHREERE (BY) BEER (FHFR)
Year ended Year ended

30 June 2014 30 June 2014 30 June 2014

BE-T—NF BE-2—MNF —E-IF

RAZTHLEE RAZTHLEE RA=+H
Hong Kong &7 12% 3% 8,800 7,900 M1% 141,700 141,000 0%
Mainland China B ARE 12% -4% 1,300 1,200 8% 191,500 215,200 V11%
Taiwan &/& 0% -17% 2,100 2,000 5% 86,300 105,000 V18%
Singapore # N -5% 5% 6,600 7,400 Vv11% 35,600 35,300 ™%
Total &3 9% 0% 4,100 3,300 24% 455,100 496,500 V8%

* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having full month operations in comparable periods
[3 /5 $E 2B IS R AR ER R LB IR T2 B 4 2 SHERALL By
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